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1 January 21, 2010 1 certainly don’'t want to give a fase
2 COMMISSIONER: 2 impression, and notwithstanding the way things
3 Q. Good morning, ladies and gentlemen. Now, Mr. 3 sometimes go at the negotiating table, asa
4 Roil, you' ve finished with your questioning, 4 union, CEP believesin building bridges with
5 haven't you? | ought to, for the record, go 5 employers, not setting up walls, and that is
6 through the list, I think. Mr. Mahoney, you 6 that the members of CEP Local 2121 are pleased
7 would go last if you have questions of 7 with the very strong safety record that exists
8 witnesses. 8 in their workplace with Suncor, as we now know
9 MR. MAHONEY: 9 it, and while we have reservations about how
10 Q. Thank you, Commissioner. 10 helicopter safety fitsinto the picture and
11 COMMISSIONER: 11 has fit into the picture, and feel that there
12 Q. Thank you. Counsel for C-NLOPB. 12 arelessons to belearned, wedon't want,
13 MS. CROSBIE: 13 particularly those who are viewing on Tv, to
14 Q. Good morning, no questions. 14 be left with the impression that the world is
15 COMMISSIONER: 15 negative in terms of safety at the Suncor
16 Q. Thank you. Transport Canada, | don't think is 16 workplace because the exact oppositeistrue,
17 here. Counsel for cAPP, anyone -- 17 and no doubt you're sitting there saying,
18 MR. SCHULTZ: 18 well, now he'sbuttered usup, we'd better
19 Q. No, thank you, sir. 19 duck. However, we don't intend to butter you
20 COMMISSIONER: 20 up. Youwent through your resumesand, |
21 Q. Now HMDC and Husky, counsel for these? 21 guess, if you will, once over lightly. I'm
22 Questions? 22 just wondering which of you has the background
23 MACDONALD, Q.C.: 23 and training in the area of safety? | mean,
24 Q. Noquestions. 24 safety hasbecome a disciplinein itsalf.
25 COMMISSIONER: 25 Which of you hasformal training in that, or
Page 2 Page 4
1 Q. Counsel for Cougar? 1 areyou all just managers?
2 WHALEN, QC:: 2 MR. STACEY:
3 Q. Noquestions, Mr. Commissioner. 3 A. Allof us.
4 COMMISSIONER: 4 MS. FARRELL:
5 Q. Thank you. Helly Hansenis not present. 5 A. Weall do.
6 Counsel for Memorial University, the Marine 6 MR.VOKEY:
7 Sciences Centre.  No questions, Mr. 7 A. Maybel'll gtart, if I can, Mr. Commissioner.
8 Rutherford. Government of Newfoundland? 8 All our employees and contractors are
9 MS. BROWN LAENGLE: 9 instructed in safety and safety management,
10 Q. Noquestions. 10 and safety is core -- isa core value for our
11 COMMISSIONER: 11 company. So safety doesn't rest with any one
12 Q. Thank you. Mr. Harrisnot here. All right 12 individual. All leaders have aresponsibility
13 then, Mr. Earle. 13 for safety. Asl’veindicated previoudly, as
14 MR. GARY VOKEY, MR. BRIAN STACEY, MS. MICHELE FARRELL: |14 asset manager for Terra Nova, | ultimately
15 EXAMINATION BY V. RANDELL J. EARLE, Q.C.: 15 have accountability for it, but approximately
16 EARLE, Q.C. 16 10 percent of our people are dedicated to the
17 Q. Good morning. 17 profession of safety and the various aspects
18 MR. STACEY: 18 of safety, and that comes under Ms. Farrell’s
19 A. Good morning. 19 department.
20 MS. FARRELL: 20 EARLE, QC.
21 A. Good morning. 21 Q. | suppose, my question is because | have some
22 EARLE, Q.C. 22 questionsin the areaof safety, and, you
23 Q. I'mgoing to start off by saying something on 23 know, to befair, | don’t want to ask someone
24 behalf of the members of ceEpLocal 2121. | 24 whose areait isn't, and I’'m particularly
25 said the same thing to HMDC the other day. We 25 familiar because of obviously commonalitiesin
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1 area of work inthe past with Ms. Farrell’s 1 the end of the exercise of the post-March 12th
2 background, is it anyone of you, you know, 2 examination of suit fit, that there were 29
3 somebody who isa safety person in your 3 individuals who did not fit asuit that was
4 background? Have either of you ever been a 4 available to them, it was not possible to get
5 safety person, someone who, if you will, has 5 agood feel?
6 thetraining in safety, moved to a higher 6 MS. FARRELL:
7 level than every manager and every employee 7 A. That'snot what | said.
8 should have? 8 EARLE, Q.C.:
9 MR. STACEY: 9 Q. Pardon?
10 A. Specifictoyour question, I do not have any 10 MS. FARRELL:
11 formal safety training per se, but as | did 11 A. That'snotwhat | said.
12 indicate, we've al received safety 12 EARLE, Q.C::
13 instruction throughout our careersand | am 13 Q. What did you say then?
14 trained in emergency command. I'll echo Mr. 14 MS. FARRELL:
15 Vokey’s statement, which is we're all safety 15 A. What | said yesterday was, and thisis between
16 professionals. We may not hold professional 16 the period from March 12th prior to returning
17 designations in safety, but certainly 17 to service, we had asked people to bring
18 throughout my career safety has been afocus 18 forward issues and concerns. | saidthat 28
19 areaand an area of continuous improvement. | 19 people post-March 12th had brought forward
20 think aswell, Ms. Farrell. 20 issues and concerns. | didn’t say that they
21 MS. FARRELL: 21 werenot ableto fitin asuit. At that
22 A. Yeah, I'll just speak to my experience. |I've 22 point, they brought forward concerns -- it
23 mentioned the fact that I’ ve been the manager 23 could have been into May or June before those
24 of thisgroup of 20 individuals, and it'sa 24 individuals actually got to Helly Hansen and
25 team of quite distinct areas of safety 25 got assessed.
Page 6 Page 8
1 speciality. | wouldn’t say thereis one, | 1 EARLE, QC::
2 would say that, in fact, there are amultitude 2 Q. Thank you for clarifying that because |
3 of individualsin my group with a broad range 3 misunderstood you, and it gives mea good
4 of experience, and that’sin my current role, 4 opportunity to remind you to project, because
5 but in my past and you're probably familiar 5 I suspect the reason that | misunderstood you
6 with other organizational models where safety 6 was that those of us who are sitting down that
7 doesn’'t aways report to a dedicated safety 7 way had some difficulty hearing you yesterday.
8 team, but I've aso supervised safety 8 So do you know the figure then that after the
9 professionalsin my past experience aswell. 9 checks were made, you know, and literally
10 So it’s not an area where I’m unfamiliar, so 10 going through person by person and seeing do
11 I’d suggest if you’ ve got specific questions, 11 we have asuit that fits this person, for
12 ask and we'll figure out who'sthe best to 12 Suncor, do you know how many of your people it
13 answey. 13 was determined who were, if you will,
14 EARLE, Q.C.. 14 authorized for offshore travel, found that
15 Q. It seemsto methen that by the nature of your 15 there was not a suit that fitted them?
16 work, you're probably the best person to 16 MS. FARRELL:
17 address questions on principles of safety, if 17 A. Areyouasking thereturnto service flight
18 youwill. Now -- and asyou addressed the 18 suit fitting? Isthat your question?
19 issue of the helicopter transportation suits, 19 EARLE, Q.C.:
20 Ms. Farrell, 1I'd like to start withyou. 1'd 20 Q. Pardon?
21 liketo seeif there are, in fact, a number of 21 MS. FARRELL:
22 things that we can agree upon in this area. | 22 A. Areyou asking about thereturnto service
23 sense from your evidence given yesterday that, 23 flight suit fitting, at the end of that
24 in fact, thereare some things that are 24 process? |sthat what you' re asking?
25 common, and that is| heard you say that at 25 EARLE, Q.C.:
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1 Q. I'mnot talking about after the new suit came 1 suitsthat did not have agood fit because
2 in. 1I’'m talking about the evaluation that was 2 they were essentially self-selecting?
3 done of the E-452, | believeit is, suit. 3 MS. FARRELL:
4 MS. FARRELL: 4 A. That may bethe case.
5 A. Sol think inthejoint panel, they indicated 5 EARLE, Q.C.
6 that it was approximately 10 percent of the 6 Q. Yeah, and you have indicated that the
7 entire workforce. 7 Occupationa Health and Safety Committee was
8 EARLE, Q.C. 8 advised, and your quote in your presentation
9 Q. Uh-hm. 9 is right out of the Minutes of the
10 MS. FARRELL: 10 Occupational Health and Safety Committee that
11  A. That wereplaced onthe "no fly" list by 11 there was an issue with tight wrist seals and
12 virtue of no face seal or no fit in the E-452. 12 improper face seals due to individual
13 EARLE, Q.C: 13 features, and, Mr. Commissioner, everybody has
14 Q. Soyoudon't -- youdon't havea figurefor 14 been supplied with copies of what I'm
15 Suncor, as such? 15 referring to.
16 MS. FARRELL: 16 COMMISSIONER:
17 A. Someof our contractors are shared between 17 Q. | think that's correct, or at least Mr. Roil
18 facilities, so they might travel to multiple 18 was telling me they're available to be
19 facilities. So we were managing thelist as 19 distributed.
20 the full list for the basin, and not managing 20 EARLE, Q.C..
21 it specifically to Suncor people. They were 21 Q. I'msorry, | thought -- | had understood --
22 al in the same -- they were all on the same 22 certainly the witnesses have them, do they?
23 list. 23 MS. FARRELL:
24 EARLE, Q.C.: 24  A. Yes, | do.
25 Q. Sothen canwe say somewhere in the range of 25 EARLE, Q.C.:
Page 10 Page 12
1 9/10 percent of the entire offshore workforce, 1 Q. Yeah. These are al redacted, Mr.
2 and likely -- because that'sa fair size 2 Commissioner, as per Suncor’ s wishes and they
3 sample, likely as well amongst Suncor 3 are Minutes of -- we have abundle here of
4 employees, somewhere in the 9/10 percent? 4 Minutes of Occupational Safety Committee
5 MS. FARRELL: 5 meetings from April 19th, 2008, through to
6 A. That would be the offshore and onshore 6 February 28th, 2009. Just going to refer to
7 workforce. We were fit testing onshore people 7 the second page of the bundle, you'll see the
8 who travel offshore aswell. 8 guote there which isunderlined, which isa
9 EARLE, Q.C.: 9 little bit more than what was in the
10 Q. Yeah 10 presentation, although I’m not suggesting that
11 MS. FARRELL: 11 therewas anything particular from the fact
12 A. S0910percentis, | think, the number that 12 that the full quote wasn't in the
13 was presented. 13 presentation. So at this April 19th, 2008
14 EARLE, Q.C:: 14 meeting, it wasraised that, "Therewas an
15 Q. Yeah, get onahelicopter, youwant asuit 15 issue with tight wrist seals and improper face
16 that fits? 16 seal due to individual features. Helly
17 MS. FARRELL: 17 Hansen, Brett, to attend Cougar to review and
18 A. Correct. 18 determine way forward. Some modifications to
19 EARLE, Q.C: 19 suits may be required”, and then if wegoto
20 Q. Yeah, okay, andwould you agree that in 20 the next page, we'll see there was a response
21 addition to this 9/10 percent who could not be 21 and it says, "A joint meeting of east coast
22 fitted, you know, after a -- you know, a 22 operators, Cougar Helicopters, and Helly
23 fairly rigorous attempt to define a fit for 23 Hansen representatives was held on March 31st,
24 them, that prior to this exercise there were 24 2008. During the meeting, issuesrelating to
25 aswell people who were flying offshore with 25 sealsand zipperswere discussed. Severa
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1 actionsarein place", andthisis alittle 1 EARLE, Q.C.
2 different than your evidence was yesterday, | 2 Q. Sol think we can conclude from that, that the
3 believe, "Cougar personnel will survey 3 issue related to seals and zippers was on the
4 outbound and inbound passengersfor asix week | 4 table, if you will, extant any other words you
5 period to determine whether seal and zipper 5 want to use, prior to it coming up at this
6 issues are continuing to cause concerns. 6 meeting of the Occupational Health and Safety?
7 Cougar personnel will continueto check al 7 MS. FARRELL:
8 outbound passengers to ensure personnel are 8 A. I'msaying | became awareof itin April.
9 ableto properly zip the suitsand don the 9 Therewould be regular meetings between our
10 hood prior to departure. Helly Hansen is 10 supply chain people, the other operators
11 continuing to apply products to the zipper to 11 supply chain people, and Helly Hansen. They
12 increase flexibility. Asthe cycletime on the 12 would occur on aregular basis at thistime,
13 suitsincreases, they expect the material and 13 anyway, so | can't speak to what was in the
14 the zippers will relax . Helly Hansen also 14 OHs Minutes prior to this. | can simply say
15 report that wrist sealsare easing ascycle 15 it cameto my attention in April.
16 timeson the suits increases. A follow-up 16 EARLE, Q.C.:
17 meeting will be held in June, 2008, to discuss 17 Q. That would be because you get copies of the
18 any continuing issues/concerns and determine 18 OHS Minutes?
19 whether any additional actions are required". 19 MS. FARRELL:
20 So we'recommon ground thiswas what was |20 A. And | was asked to follow up on items, yes.
21 before the Occupational Health and Safety 21 EARLE, Q.C.
22 Committee? 22 Q. Yeah, so somebody was dealing with it prior to
23 MS. FARRELL: 23 yourself because clearly, you know, the whole
24 A. | think that’swhat | communicated yesterday. 24 business of the survey, the whole business of
25 EARLE, Q.C.. 25 six week period of check, and the follow up on
Page 14 Page 16
1 Q. Yes. Now younotice that thissays that 1 June 8th, thishad come up at a March 31st
2 Cougar will do the survey, and | think your 2 meeting, right? Do you agree with that? If
3 evidence was that Helly Hansen wasto do the 3 you could answer orally; remember now, this
4 survey? 4 don’t go on the transcript.
5 MS. FARRELL: 5 MS. FARRELL:
6 A. Helly Hansen designed the survey, Cougar 6 A. Okay.
7 administered it. Helly Hansen compiled the 7 EARLE, QC::
8 results. 8 Q. Okay, and in addition to yourself, this
9 EARLE, Q.C: 9 information would have gone to the -- | think
10 Q. Okay. That clarifiesthat. So the issue was 10 you people use the EHs acronym. So the EHS,
11 on the table, and it appears actually to have 11 Environment Health and Safety Advisor, who
12 been onthe table back in March of 2008, 12 attends all occupational health and safety
13 right, because the response to something 13 meetings, one of the people in your
14 raised at an April meeting refers back to a 14 department, Ms. Farrell, that person had that
15 meeting that was held in March? 15 information and now we know from what you just
16 MS. FARRELL: 16 told usthat you had that information?
17 A. | can't speak to what was on the March agenda. |17 MS. FARRELL:
18 It came to my attention in April. 18 A. Asof April, yes.
19 EARLE, Q.C: 19 EARLE, QC.
20 Q. Yourenot understanding me. You see the 20 Q. Anditwasonly after the crash, and town hall
21 response on the second page of that Minute, it 21 meetings, it was suggested by HMmDC the other
22 says, "A joint meeting washeld on March 22 day that information on Robert Decker’s body
23 31st". 23 temperature triggered things, that the impetus
24 MS. FARRELL: 24 arose that, you know, we've got a major
25 A Yes 25 problem here, if you will, to use the
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1 phraseology that has been used earlier, "We 1 A Yes itdid.
2 haveto drill deeper on thisone", that there 2 EARLE, Q.C.:
3 was along process of interaction, but after 3 Q. Anditwasquiteexplicit?
4 the crash, the engagement on the issue went 4 MS. FARRELL:
5 way up? 5 A. Andit wasrequested in the OHS -
6 MS. FARRELL: 6 EARLE, Q.C.
7 A. From Suncor’s perspective, | wouldn't agree 7 Q. And it wasrequested by the Occupational
8 with that statement. | think what we 8 Health and Safety --
9 presented yesterday wasa long series of 9 MS. FARRELL:
10 issues, actions, investigations, and actions 10 A. Itwasrequested in the oHsS Committee meetings
11 to try and get to the bottom. By December of 11 of February and March, yes.
12 2008, we had communicated to our workforce, if |12 EARLE, Q.C.:
13 there are issues, bring them forward, we need 13 Q. Yeah,andit didn't get aresponse?
14 to address them. 14 MS. FARRELL:
15 EARLE, Q.C.: 15 A. Thee-mail in April got aresponse, and, in
16 Q. Yeah,and -- 16 fact --
17 MS. FARRELL: 17 EARLE, Q.C:
18 A. Thereturn to service work was not because we 18 Q. Thee-mail in April.
19 believed there was asystemic issue. The 19 MS. FARRELL:
20 return to service work was what we felt was 20 A. And, infact, individuals were coming forward
21 the appropriate due diligence, particularly 21 beforethat e-mail to identify their issues
22 given that peoplehadn’t been flying for 22 and concerns.
23 amost two months. 23 EARLE, Q.C.:
24 EARLE, Q.C.: 24 Q. Individualswere coming forward before. My
25 Q. Let meput something to you, Ms. Farrell, and 25 sense from reading the Minutes, Ms. Farrell,
Page 18 Page 20
1 I’m just trying to look at this from the point 1 isthat the e-mail, theinitial e-mail that
2 of view of someone at Suncor, actually trying 2 went out, did not cause a number of peopleto
3 to put myself in your boots. Aswe will see 3 come forward and say my suit doesn't seal.
4 when we look at the Minutes, at a point in 4 MS. FARRELL:
5 time therewas an e-mail went out to all 5 A. Wdll, it'sunfortunate, because you' re getting
6 employees and said -- which | haven't seen the 6 that from the Minutes. | can tell you that by
7 actual e-mail, but my sense of the content was 7 the 27th of March, | had names of individuals
8 if you have aproblem with thefit of your 8 who were requesting assessment in their suits.
9 suit, please bring thisto the attention of 9 EARLE, Q.C.
10 your supervisor. 10 Q. That's the 27th of March. That brings a
11 MS. FARRELL: 11 crucial dateinto play. Beforethe 12th of
12 A. That e-mail, in fact, referenced the December 12 March, what kind of response were you getting?
13 communication to the OHS committees. Thee- |13 MS. FARRELL:
14 mail was actually requested by the OHS 14 A. Wehad oneindividual that came forward.
15 Committee as a follow-up to ensure that there 15 EARLE, Q.C::
16 was -- that everyone understood our 16 Q. That'smy point, that you had made the request
17 expectations from the December oHs Committee |17 aconsiderable period of time before the 12th
18 meeting. 18 of March?
19 EARLE, Q.C: 19 MS. FARRELL:
20 Q. Justdothisby hits. 20 A. Yes, because wewanted to understand the
21 MS. FARRELL: 21 issues, concerns, and investigate them.
22 A. | thought | was, sorry. 22 EARLE, Q.C.
23 EARLE, Q.C.. 23 Q. Right. Asl say, I'mtrying tolook at this
24 Q. You agreethat that e-mail went out? 24 thing from the position of Suncor, and from
25 MS. FARRELL: 25 the position of the Occupational Health and
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1 Safety Committee. The request went out to 1 talking about alife threatening problemin

2 people, "tell your supervisor if your suit 2 our environment. Do you agree with that?

3 doesn't sed”, in so many words, and before 3 MS. FARRELL:

4 March 12th, it did not elicit a response 4 A. There€'snoquestion that water ingress in a

5 anywhere like the responsethat it elicited 5 suit will compromise the performance of the

6 post March 12th? 6 suit.

7 MS. FARRELL: 7 EARLE, Q.C:

8 A. | wouldsay that that’s consistent with the 8 Q. Andthreaten thelife of theindividual ?

9 fact that we had even throughout 2008 avery 9 MS. FARRELL:

10 small number of individuals, and as the 10 A. Agreed.
11 Minutes will tell you, that were talking about 11 EARLE, Q.C:
12 face sedl. We had a large number of 12 Q. If they’reinthewater for any length of time
13 individuals that were talking about zippers, 13 without thermal protection, we're talking
14 wrist seals, and the overal comfort of the 14 survival time reduced to minutes, right?
15 suit. Sothefact that many peopledidn’t 15 MS. FARRELL:
16 come forward, | think that’s consistent with 16 A. | can'tspeak tosurvival times. | can say
17 what we saw in the basin. We didn’t have any 17 that water ingress in a suit has the potential
18 reason to believe that there was a systemic 18 to impact the headth of the individual,
19 issue with the suits. 19 absolutely.
20 EARLE, QC. 20 EARLE, QC.
21 Q. Butyoudid havereasonto believe that one 21 Q. Waell, areyou familiar with the survival times
22 individual was flying with a suit that didn’t 22 for somebody with no suit?
23 fit? 23 MS. FARRELL:
24 MS. FARRELL: 24 A, Yes.
25 A. ldidn't-- 1 can’t say that hissuit didn't 25 EARLE, Q.C.:
Page 22 Page 24

1 fit. We had an individual that raised a 1 Q. Yeah. We'retaking minutes, right?

2 concern and we took a series of stepsto try 2 MS. FARRELL:

3 and investigate the concern. 3 A. That'scorrect.

4 EARLE, Q.C. 4 EARLE, Q.C.

5 Q. Wdll, youhad oneindividua, and we'll get 5 Q. Yeah.

6 the Minutes, | think you will have to agree 6 MS. FARRELL:

7 was persistent in saying my suit does not fit? 7 A. Potentialy.

8 MS. FARRELL: 8 EARLE, Q.C.

9 A. And| think that we were persistent in trying 9 Q. Dowehaveany reasonto believethat asuit
10 to understand and addressal of theissues 10 that will take in water is any better than no
11 that were coming to us. | hear your point, 11 suit?

12 but I cantell you that we don't get these 12 MS. FARRELL:

13 issues and disregard them, and | think you'll 13 A. I’'msorry, your question?

14 see through the Minutes, through the 14 EARLE, Q.C:

15 presentations, we were investigating, engaging 15 Q. Dowehaveany reasonto believethat a suit

16 the workforce, and | think therewas also a 16 that will takein water from the environment

17 very high level of communication back to the 17 is better than no suit?

18 workforce to explain what we were doing. 18 MS. FARRELL:

19 EARLE, Q.C: 19 A. I’'mafraid | don't understand your question.

20 Q. Nobody issaying you disregarded these things. 20 EARLE, Q.C..

21 Theissue, and we'll go through the Minutes so 21 Q. Thenl'll askit again.

22 we got them on therecord -- | think we are 22 MS. FARRELL:

23 also agreed that it isa major problem if 23 A. Wéll, perhaps you could rephraseit.

24 someone goesin the water with one of these 24 EARLE, Q.C.:

25 suits that doesn't seal right, and we're 25 Q. We know that if you go inthe water in
Page 21 - Page 24
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1 offshore Newfoundland with no suit on, you 1 Q. Pardon?

2 literally have the potential of dying from 2 MS. FARRELL:

3 hypothermiaas aresult of being there for 3 A. The Transportation Safety Board has aso

4 minutes. 4 indicated that Mr. Decker was not wearing an

5 MS. FARRELL: 5 appropriately sized suit.

6 A. That'scorrect. 6 EARLE, Q.C.:

7 EARLE, Q.C.: 7 Q. Yes andthat’s-- thank you, that’ s the exact

8 Q. Andmy questionisareyou any better off if 8 point, if you don't have an appropriately

9 your suit leaks? 9 fitting suit.
10 MS. FARRELL: 10 MR. VOKEY:
11  A. Thesearen't dry suits, and | think thereisa 11 A. Butthereisalso evidence that he wasn't just
12 bit of amisconception that the helicopter 12 under the surface of the water, that it was
13 transportation suit will keep you completely 13 some significant distance below the surface of
14 dry. There will be over time water ingress 14 the water, which would have a definite impact
15 into the suit. The cGsB standard, though, 15 too.
16 actually deals with the fact that water 16 EARLE, Q.C.:
17 ingress is potential and the thermal 17 Q. Yes, exactly, and there’sno guarantee, you
18 insulation requirements have been designed to 18 know, that someone in ahelicopter crashis
19 address that, and so | think it’simportant to 19 not going to be at some point submerged.
20 understand it’s not adry suit. 20 MR. VOKEY:
21 EARLE, Q.C. 21  A. Then againthese suits aredesigned to a
22 Q. No,it'snotadry suit. I'mtalking about a 22 standard and the depth of submersion isnot
23 suit that takesin more than the standard, 23 meant to be, you know, 15to 20 metres.
24 substantially more than the standard. 24 That's not what they’re designed for and
25 MR.VOKEY: 25 that’s not what the standard is.

Page 26 Page 28

1 A If I can just say, theseals that we're 1 EARLE, Q.C.

2 talking about are face seals, and those suits 2 Q. Thepoint, Mr. Vokey, and this-- | got to say

3 are designed to keep your face out of the 3 thisis one of the areas where| redly part

4 water, soit’s just on initial going in the 4 withyou. You seem to have forgotten that

5 water, but with the life vest, those suits are 5 there are two elements. It’sone thing to

6 designed to keep individual’ s heads out of the 6 have a properly designed suit, asuit that’s

7 water. 7 certified. It'sanother thingto have the

8 EARLE, Q.C.: 8 right suit for the individual who'sinit.

9 Q. Mr.Vokey, your faceisnot out of the water 9 MS. FARRELL:
10 if the helicopter is submerged. 10 A. Andl think --
11 MR.VOKEY: 11 EARLE, Q.C:
12 A. But these suits are not designed for submerged 12 Q. Andthey aretwo separate issues, and it’sthe
13 helicoptersat any depth. It'sfor brief 13 latter issue that we' re exploring, how we got
14 period of time, less than a minute. 14 to a situation where we had these people with
15 EARLE, Q.C.: 15 suitsthat didn't fit out there flying, and
16 Q. Thewhole pointis, Mr. Vokey, as we heard 16 what we have learned from how we got there.
17 from Mr. Decker, in the brief period of time 17 That’swhere I’m going.
18 that he was under water, there was ingress of 18 MS. FARRELL:
19 water and we know hisbody temperaturewent |19  A. So perhapsit is worthwhile to go through the
20 down to 28 degrees. 20 Minutes of the meeting because | think that
21 MS. FARRELL: 21 does giveyou asense of exactly what we
22 A. Wealso know from the Transportation Safety 22 understood, exactly what we did to address,
23 Board that Mr. Decker was not wearing a suit 23 and then ultimately to have Suncor on a path
24 that fit his body. 24 to have people coming forward in December of
25 EARLE, Q.C.: 25 2008 if they had an issue or concern. We were
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1 prepared to addressiit. 1 MS. FARRELL:
2 EARLE, Q.C. 2 A, Soinresponseto that --
3 Q. LikeMr. Roil with Mr. Stacey yesterday -- 3 EARLE, Q.C:
4 MS. FARRELL: 4 Q. Justa--
5 A. Pardon me? 5 MS. FARRELL:
6 EARLE, Q.C. 6 A. Okay, dl right. Helly Hansen were there.
7 Q. LikeMr. Rail with Mr. Stacey yesterday, | 7 Helly Hansen did instruct people for the first
8 determine the order of questions here. 8 Six weeks.
9 MS. FARRELL: 9 EARLE, Q.C:
10 A. Caryon. 10 Q. | know that, I know they were here, but you
11 EARLE, Q.C:: 1 were hear, you heard what Mr. Collinssaid in
12 Q. Now | suggest toyou, and -- you know, just 12 answer tothe questions asto what their
13 get your head out of the blame gamefor a 13 contract was. Another scenario, therewasa
14 minute. | suggest to you that -- forget for a 14 failurein communicationsto the individual
15 moment where the possible breakdown is. The |15 wearers inthat individual wearersof the
16 fact of the matter that we had these people 16 suits should have had some instruction so they
17 flying in suits that did not seal by anyone’s 17 could self-check for fit. Now do you agree
18 standard qualifies anear miss. What do you 18 that those are two possible weaknesses that --
19 think of that? 19 MS. FARRELL:
20 MS. FARRELL: 20 A. | can't agreethat therewas afailurein the
21 A. | think that wetried very hard through our 21 contract. We had Helly Hansen there. |
22 hazard identification program to understand 22 wouldn't necessarily agree that there wasa
23 where there might have been issues with a suit 23 failurein communication. Helly Hansen was
24 that was certified to adual standard, and we 24 there and instructed people, and in addition,
25 were working very hard to understand how to 25 when people did their basic survival training,
Page 30 Page 32
1 modify the suit and maintain the standard. 1 they got additional instruction from the
2 That’swhat | can say, and that was the focus 2 instructors at M1. I know when | did my basic
3 of significant effortsthrough all of 2008. 3 survival training recurrent in 2008, the
4 In addition to deal with zippers, wrist seals, 4 instructors were particularly helpful with me
5 that was a significant effort. 5 in giving meinstruction on how to get the
6 EARLE, Q.C. 6 appropriate seal in the suit.
7 Q. | believe you, but | seetwo issuesthere. 7 EARLE, Q.C.:
8 One, the problem was identified, how do we 8 Q. Theproblemwiththatisif you rely onyour
9 solveit, and we' ve heard considerable effort 9 BST recurrent, we have a new suit --
10 was placed on that, and a second issue which | 10 MS. FARRELL:
11 seeasearlierintimeishow wasit that it 11 A. |l didn't say wewere solely relying on that.
12 wasn't picked up, and let me just put to you a 12 | said Helly Hansen was also there.
13 couple of possible scenarios. One, there was 13 EARLE, Q.C:
14 afailurein the contract with Helly Hansen 14 Q. Yes, but Helly Hansen -- you heard Mr. Collins
15 because the contract did not provide for 15 tell us. He said it was not their
16 Cougar peopleto be trained to see that there 16 responsibility to seeto it that individuals
17 was aproper fit, did not provide for Helly 17 fit the suits, and secondly, it was not their
18 Hansen person to come in and instruct 18 responsibility to train Cougar personnel to
19 individuals or Cougar how to ensurethey hada |19 seeto it that individuals had proper fit for
20 proper fit. That’s one scenario, one possible 20 the suit.
21 problem. 21 MS. FARRELL:
22 MS. FARRELL: 22 A. Aslrecal Mr. Collins testimony, hesaid
23 A. So-- 23 that they did not do the type of fit testing
24 EARLE, Q.C.: 24 that occurred from May of 2009 onwards, but
25 Q. Another possible problem -- 25 Helly Hansen were at the heliport and did
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1 instruct individuals as they went through and 1 MS. FARRELL:
2 donned the suits in the proper donning 2 A. No, they werethere for six weeks.
3 techniques for the suits. 3 EARLE, Q.C.:
4 MR.VOKEY: 4 Q. They weretherefor six weeks?
5 A. | think, Mr. Commissioner, we have to rely on 5 MS. FARRELL:
6 what happened, not what was in the contract. 6 A. Yes, and when thisissue came up in 2008, you
7 There are occurrences where asthings evolve 7 see that we took the action to ask Cougar to
8 thingsin the contract change. So whileit 8 make sure that people could fully don their
9 might not have been afinancia or commercial 9 suits, and | think some of the joint panel
10 obligation by Helly Hansen, we do know that 10 members actually testified to the fact that
11 they did do fit testing at the heliport. 11 that occurred on aregular basis. We asked
12 EARLE, Q.C:: 12 that of Cougar.
13 Q. When? 13 EARLE, Q.C::
14 MR. VOKEY: 14 Q. Wadl then, | put it to you that this must be a
15 A. When the suit wasrolled out initially. 15 possible scenario, if you believe that it was
16 EARLE, Q.C.: 16 Helly Hansen' s job to ensure proper fit, then
17 Q. When the suit wasrolled out? 17 they didn’t do their job.
18 MR. VOKEY: 18 MS. FARRELL:
19 A. Asanew suit, yes. 19 A. Ithink I’'ve aready said Helly Hansen were at
20 EARLE, Q.C.: 20 the heliport for six weeks when the suits were
21 Q. For every individual? 21 introduced. They were clear. Thefit testing
22 MS. FARRELL: 22 that started in 2009 with return to service
23 A. We asked Helly Hansen to be present - 23 had not been done previously. It was the
24 EARLE, Q.C.: 24 first of itskind. It isabest practice
25 Q. No, no. 25 that’ s been recognized. Have we learned from
Page 34 Page 36
1 MS. FARRELL: 1 this? Absolutely.
2 A, -atthehdiport. 2 EARLE, Q.C.:
3 EARLE, Q.C: 3 Q. Okay. Ittakes awhile to get you people
4 Q. I'dlike Mr. Vokey - 4 around. Did you do aformal TapRoot analysis
5 MR.VOKEY: 5 to get to that, to get to your conclusions?
6 A. lcan'tsay - 6 MS. FARRELL:
7 EARLE, Q.C.: 7 A. Towhich conclusion?
8 Q. Heinterrupted and wanted to answer. I’d like 8 EARLE, Q.C.:
9 you to answer that question, Mr. Vokey. 9 Q. The conclusion that a different level of
10 MR. VOKEY: 10 testing for fit was required.
11 A. | apologize. | didn't mean to interrupt. | 11 MS. FARRELL:
12 meant to clarify. We do know they were there 12 A. When weasked Helly Hansen togo to the
13 for aperiod. Now whether they hit 100 13 heliport with returnto flight, it was not
14 percent or not, | can’t say, but therewasa 14 because we felt there was a systemic issue
15 dedicated effort to ensurethat peoplewere 15 with the suits. 1t was because we wanted to
16 sized in the suits appropriately. 16 ensure that people were fully oriented into
17 MS. FARRELL: 17 the suits again, particularly given that
18 A. Andwhentheissue- 18 they’ d been away from flying for two months.
19 EARLE, Q.C:: 19 What came from that was ultimately where we
20 Q. My understanding, Mr. Vokey -- | understand, 20 are now, which iswe ended up with ten percent
21 Mr. Vokey, from Mr. Collins' evidence isthat 21 not being able to achieve an appropriate seal.
22 they had someone there about two weeks. s 22 But, and | want to be clear, Helly Hansen were
23 that your understanding? 23 not therein May of 2009 because we felt that
24 MR.VOKEY: 24 there was a systemic issue with the suit.
25 A. No. 25 EARLE, QC.:
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1 Q. Okay. So what you'resayingis-- I'mglad 1 impede, it was a comfort issue, and the issue
2 you made that point because this is a 2 with the seals around the face was thought, by
3 different impression than | had from HMDCin 3 al concerned, including Helly Hansen, to be a
4 their evidence. What you're essentially 4 function of the stiffness of the zippers and
5 saying isthe effort by Helly Hansen in May of 5 the fact that the suits were new.
6 2009 was simply a part of the return to flying 6 EARLE, Q.C.
7 exercise and that was what uncovered the large 7 Q. Okay, it was -- the impetus was the heightened
8 problem? 8 concern?
9 MS. FARRELL: 9 MR. VOKEY:
10 A. lwouldn't say ssimply. | would say that this 10 A. Thatispart of it, yes.
11 was asignificant effort on the part of the 11 EARLE, Q.C:
12 operators to ensure due diligence with return 12 Q. Yeah
13 to flying operations. 13 MS. FARRELL:
14 EARLE, Q.C:: 14 A. Andour need as operators to ensure that our
15 Q. So,and straightforward simple, when do you 15 people who are travelling offshore are doing
16 see the larger problem of aten percent non- 16 so safely.
17 fit being discovered? 17 EARLE, Q.C::
18 MS. FARRELL: 18 Q. Yeah, but smply put, and we know from the
19 A. As westarted to put people through that 19 minutes, and let's go through them now.
20 flight suit fit testing processand Helly 20 Starting at April 19th, we have at least one
21 Hansen flagged that there were concerns, that 21 person saying the suit doesn’t seal.
22 iswhen ultimately we could concludewe havea |22 MS. FARRELL:
23 significant issue. 23 A. Therewasa personthat indicated aconcern
24 EARLE, Q.C.: 24 with face seals, yes. | can’t conclude from
25 Q. Okay, and what was the impetus for that 25 thisthat it didn't seal. The person had a
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1 testing? 1 concern with the face seal.
2 MS. FARRELL: 2 EARLE, Q.C:
3 A. Weasked Helly Hansento bethere, again, to 3 Q. Wall, there was aperson sayingit didn't
4 provide the due diligence. As part of that, 4 seal.
5 and the work that Suncor had already started 5 MS. FARRELL:
6 to ensure that people were fitted, they were 6 A. | think the words are there.
7 measured. I'll be honest, the path that we 7 EARLE, Q.C.:
8 were on, and | think | said that in the 8 Q. Yeah, that wasaperson at risk.
9 presentation yesterday, the path that we were 9 MS. FARRELL:
10 on isone that started with Suncor, that 10 A. Correct, it was a hazard.
1 rolled into the work that started at the 11 EARLE, Q.C::
12 heliport with return to service and ultimately 12 Q. And, but what we see s, on the next page, is
13 we are where we are. 13 that the action is closed, and | take that to
14 EARLE, Q.C:: 14 mean that it is considered to be dealt with by
15 Q. Thequestion | asked you, Ms. Farrell, was 15 that response?
16 what was the impetus? What caused this higher 16 MS. FARRELL:
17 level of fit testing to be engaged? 17 A. You actualy need to speak to the members of
18 MS. FARRELL: 18 the oHscommittee. | don't getto close
19  A. Our duediligence. 19 actions. They haveto agreein their meeting
20 MR.VOKEY: 20 tocloseit. | think you'll seein the next
21 A. And if | canjust comment, there was a 21 meeting that the action gets reopened.
22 heightened sensitivity and we did have more 22 EARLE, Q.C.
23 individuals coming forward, and as Ms. Farrell 23 Q. Yeah.
24 indicated, for quitea period of time, the 24 MS. FARRELL:
25 issue was tight wrist seals, which wouldn’t 25 A. Andinfact, in some cases, there are several
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1 actions that end up getting rolled into one. 1 assign itto somebody for response. The
2 EARLE, Q.C: 2 individual who's assigned the accountability
3 Q. Butis there an established criteria-- | 3 for response responds back to the individual
4 looked at your materials and couldn’t find it, 4 and if they chooseto closethe ProAct, the
5 but you know, your materials are fairly 5 individua is notified of the response and
6 voluminous and we didn’t have along timeto 6 that the ProAct has been closed. If they
7 go through them, given that we're dealing with 7 don’'t agree, they simply reopen the ProAct.
8 other witnesses. |s therean established 8 EARLE, Q.C.:
9 criteriafor closing an action? 9 Q. Okay, sothat’show you have to deal with it?
10 MS. FARRELL: 10 If you don’'t agree, you reopen it?
11 A. Agreement of the committee. 11 MS. FARRELL:
12 EARLE, Q.C:: 12 A. Andl think you'll seethat’s what happened
13 Q. Sosimply agreement of the committee. Isthat 13 here.
14 the same with ProAct? 14 EARLE, Q.C::
15 MS. FARRELL: 15 Q. Andthat’swhat happened. If we go to the May
16 A. I'msorry, | don't understand. ProAct - 16 10th minutes on page three, and it’ s described
17 EARLE, Q.C:: 17 as"survival suit sizing issue not addressed
18 Q. Wadl, asl understand, anyone caninitiate a 18 for al travellers. Action closed? Action:
19 ProAct. 19 the suit sizingwas not covered in thetwo
20 MS. FARRELL: 20 actions that were closed. Note that the
21  A. Theseitems here are actually ProActs. 21 actions were closed but an additional action
22 EARLE, Q.C.: 22 was opened for ES& SR advisor to communicate
23 Q. | know. 23 back to committee after the 2008 meeting.
24 MS. FARRELL: 24 Another ProAct action will be opened regarding
25 A. Yes, okay. 25 suit size for individuals that may require
Page 42 Page 44
1 EARLE, Q.C. 1 modificationsto fit." Sothe committeeis
2 Q. Butisthat thesamewith-- | mean, | don't 2 saying no, no, thishas got to stay on the
3 have to be a member of the Occupational Health | 3 agenda?
4 and Safety Committeeif I’'m one of your 4 MS. FARRELL:
5 employeesto initiate a ProAct. 5 A. Andit continues, | think, to current day.
6 MS. FARRELL: 6 EARLE, Q.C.:
7  A. Anyone can close a ProAct that’s been assigned 7 Q. Andthen we see May 31st, 2008. The action is
8 to them, and - 8 described as "the Helly Hansen suit does not
9 EARLE, Q.C.: 9 fit al personnel offshore. Custom sizesare
10 Q. Okay,well just, | need abit more from you to 10 required for some individuals who have unique
11 understand that. As | understand it, somebody 11 sizing. Onshore follow up required. Please
12 inyour process module, take it away from 12 update this entry with actionsto follow" and
13 helicopters for amoment, they think there’sa 13 then there’ sa response. "The flight suits
14 safety issue. They can open a ProAct and then 14 currently in use have been designed to meet
15 the accountabl e persons have to respond? 15 Transport Canada and Coast Guard certification
16 MS. FARRELL: 16 requirements. We are working with Helly
17 A. Yes 17 Hansen to determine if suit modifications can
18 EARLE, Q.C.: 18 be performed while still meeting the
19 Q. Is there acriteria for closing and who 19 certification standards. Helly Hansen are
20 closes? Isit closed by the person who opens 20 working with Transport Canada and Coast Guard
21 or isit closed by the person who responds? 21 to further assess what will be required for
22 MS. FARRELL: 22 compliance purposes and will keep usinformed
23  A. ltdepends on theuse of ProAct. In the 23 as the process continues. Until we are
24 example that you're talking about, an 24 satisfied that Helly Hansen can modify the
25 individual will opena ProAct, they will 25 suits while maintaining the certification
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1 requirements, we will not bein a position to 1 where the question of seal of the suit for at
2 entertain requests for individual flight suit 2 least oneindividual was till outstanding?
3 modifications. Moved to close" and then "will 3 MS. FARRELL:
4 continue to track." Now there seemsto bea 4 A. What | understood and what we were
5 little bit of difference within the committee 5 investigating is multiple things. Whether the
6 thereasto - 6 Zippers were impacting the face seal, and as |
7 MS. FARRELL: 7 indicated yesterday, we took a series of steps
8 A. No, that'sspecific to movingto close a 8 to try and address and understand that, and at
9 particular ProAct and agreeing to track it 9 the same time, we were proceeding down the
10 under adifferent ProAct. That's what that 10 path of understanding the implications of
11 means. 11 modifying suits for whatever reason.
12 EARLE, Q.C: 12 EARLE, Q.C:
13 Q. It appearsto me, from reading this, that the 13 Q. Now, youwill recal thatthe very first
14 issue is being perceived at this point in time 14 notation was not about zipper on face seal.
15 asthefit of the suitsin the sense of they 15 It was about facial features, and my question
16 are cumbersome, you know, lots of excess 16 really isoriented to the fact that 1 would
17 material for the person, not a comfortable 17 have thought that if at this point in time you
18 fit. Isthat how you saw it at that time? 18 thought that there was a person out there who
19 MS. FARRELL: 19 didn’t have a suit that properly sealed around
20 A. No. 20 their face, you would have said "look, someone
21 EARLE, Q.C. 21 gofind that individual and get it checked
22 Q. Youdid not? 22 out, whether their suit fits or not, because
23 MS. FARRELL: 23 this is no different than if we've got
24 A. No,itwas-- | wasnot looking at thisasa 24 somebody who's using a respirator which is
25 comfort issue. That’s not -- that was not my 25 defective or we've got somebody who's using
Page 46 Page 48
1 perception. 1 safety glassesthat are defective. Wedon't
2 EARLE, Q.C: 2 want this sort of thing happening.” So | need
3 Q Sodidyou- 3 to know where Petro-Canada’'s mind, which |
4 MS. FARRELL: 4 take youto be representative of in this
5 A. Wewereworking - 5 issue, was at that point in time.
6 EARLE, Q.C.: 6 MS. FARRELL:
7 Q. Atthat pointintime, did you still seethis 7 A. | canspeak for al of uswhen | can say that
8 as aquestion of seals? 8 not only were wetrying to address the face
9 MS. FARRELL: 9 seal zipper issues, the wrist seal issues, we
10 A. We were working with Helly Hansen to 10 were also trying to simultaneously understand
11 understand how to modify the suits while 11 and address suit modification issuesfor a
12 maintaining a dual standard, which iswhat -- 12 suit which, again | will say, was certified to
13 we'rerequired to fly peoplein acertified 13 a Transport Canada aviation and marine
14 suit. 1t'snot like a suit that you can take 14 standards with robust testing associated with
15 to the tailor shop and modify. If you change 15 those standards. That is exactly where we
16 it, you no longer have a certified suit. So 16 were at this point in time.
17 from our perspective, there was a considerable 17 MR. VOKEY:
18 effort associated with understanding the cGss 18 A. Excuseme.
19 standard, the rigour that goes into that 19 EARLE, Q.C:
20 testing requirement and the impact of 20 Q. Areyou saying that you were prepared, at that
21 modifying asuit. That’swhat thisis about. 21 point intime, unlike your later position
22 EARLE, Q.C. 22 where people who didn't fit, didn’t have suits
23 Q. Ms. Farrdl, this is a very important 23 fit, went by boat, that you were prepared, at
24 question. Did you, asthe senior personin 24 that point in time, to tolerate people flying
25 thisdivision, seethisas being asituation 25 with suits that did not fit while the problems
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1 were sorted out? 1 majority of the workforce were wearing the
2 MS. FARRELL: 2 suit and athough it had bulkiness and other
3 A | think I've said we did not have any 3 issues with it, it was an improvement, and the
4 indication of a systemic issue with a 4 fact that oneindividua cameforward, and
5 certified suit. 5 thiswas still followed through to completion,
6 EARLE, Q.C. 6 and in fact began a process that is now a best
7 Q. Butyou- 7 practice, | think isan indication of the
8 MS. FARRELL: 8 commitment to safety in our workforce. Itis
9 A. Wehad an individua who complained about a 9 easy for usto be self critical in hindsight
10 face seal and we were working to understand 10 when we have all the information at hand. But
11 the extent to which the zipper issue impacted 11 my perception was during the time that this
12 the face seal issue. 12 was going on that wewere in astate of
13 MR. VOKEY: 13 improvement and in fact, it sasign of the
14 A. Andthat's akey point here. In the early 14 confidence that everyone has in aviation and
15 phase of this, back at that period, the face 15 helicopter transportation.  That's my
16 seal and the zipper issue were thought to be 16 perception.
17 linked because if you move that zipper a half 17 EARLE, Q.C:
18 aninch either way, the potential is there 18 Q. So whatyou're saying is, "listen, if it
19 that the seal would not necessarily be intact 19 wasn't fitting for one person, we shouldn’t be
20 asit wasin the previous position. So both 20 too upset because chances are with the Mustang
21 of them were thought to belinked. We were 21 suit, we had lots of people who weren’t being
22 working the zipper issue. 22 fit." Isthat what you're saying?
23 EARLE, QC: 23 MR. STACEY:
24 Q. Youwould agree, Mr. Vokey, that in the first 24 A. No, | didn't say that the Mustang suit, lots
25 notation, there is not linkage, is there? 25 of people weren't fitting. | was saying that
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1 MS. FARRELL: 1 thiseffort was continuousimprovement. As
2 A. There's actually two notations that come 2 with many other thingsthat we doin our
3 together. Thefirstisin relation to zippers 3 business, we're alwayslooking for ways to
4 and then the second isin relation to the face 4 improve, and in fact, we' re interested in what
5 seal. Wewere getting both simultaneously. 5 Phase 1B hasto say about how we addressed the
6 Frankly, we were getting alot more issues 6 suitsand the best practice that’s now in
7 around the zippers clearly than we were around 7 place and that Transport Canada has recognized
8 the face seal. So again, | think you haveto 8 and is sharing with other areas of the
9 recognize where we were at thistime and the 9 industry, and yes, canwedo things faster?
10 number of issues. 10 Certainly. That's what we doiswe go back
11 EARLE, Q.C:: 1 and we look at the lessons learned and try to
12 Q. Exactly, that's exactly what I'mtrying to 12 be better, but | certainly didn’t share that
13 find out, where you folks were, and - 13 perception.
14 MR. STACEY: 14 EARLE, Q.C:
15 A. Could | make a-- offer acomment? 15 Q. Wadl, that's what I'm trying to get you
16 EARLE, Q.C.: 16 fellowsto tell usiswhat you’ve learned from
17 Q. Sure. 17 thisprocess. | mean, | told you, | seeit,
18 MR. STACEY: 18 my client sees it as a near miss, and
19 A. | think, in fact, where we were, from my 19 everything you tell us and everything we know
20 perspective, the introduction of the E452 suit 20 about you says that if there’ sa near miss,
21 was a continuous improvement effort that the 21 you go back and you find out why therewas a
22 industry had made. From my experience in 22 near miss, and I’'mtrying to-- I know you
23 flying in the Mustang suit and previously with 23 think I’'m here to beat up on you, but -
24 no suits that in fact the introduction of the 24 MS. FARRELL:
25 E452 was continuous improvement andthevast |25 A. All | would say is-- and again, | go back to
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1 the minutes because the work that we did, the 1 EARLE, Q.C.
2 engagement that we did with our employees, the | 2 Q. We have the technology, Mr. Commissioner.
3 survey that we asked Helly Hansen to do, 3 COMMISSIONER:
4 you'll find inherea copy of a dide deck 4 Q. Oh, I know you -
5 that we presented to the C-NLOPB in the middle 5 MR. STACEY:
6 of August, or middle of July of 2008, all of 6 A. It'safast mouse.
7 which talked about what do we know, what are 7 MS. FARRELL:
8 we doing, what are our next steps, and 8 A. It'savery fast mouse.
9 ultimately we maintained that level of 9 MR.VOKEY:
10 communication with our workforcethroughout. (10 A, Therewe go.
11 So | believe that we did as much as we could, 11 COMMISSIONER:
12 knowing what we did at the time. 12 Q. Allright.
13 EARLE, Q.C: 13 EARLE, Q.C:
14 Q. Could wego tothe survey? It's Exhibit 14 Q. If youlook at the answers, and well, before
15 00090. That's a Helly Hansen exhibit. 15 we look at the answers, did you have any input
16 REGISTRAR: 16 into the survey questions?
17 Q. Hdly Hansen? 17 MS. FARRELL:
18 ROIL, Q.C.: 18 A. Thedesign wasdone by Helly Hansen. No, it
19 Q. Helly Hansen exhibit. 19 was done by Helly Hansen.
20 EARLE, QC. 20 EARLE, QC.
21 Q. | think you're probably goingto have to 21 Q. Okay. Youwould havereceived this survey
22 rotateit, yeah. Let metell you, Mr. Vokey, 22 result on or about June 3rd?
23 that’ s exactly where | was on my home computer |23 MS. FARRELL:
24 at 6:00 this morning. 24 A. | reference in the update to the committee in
25 MR. VOKEY: 25 August that we had a July meeting with Helly
Page 54 Page 56
1 A. |l wasgoing to makea comment, but | decided 1 Hansen where we met and discussed the survey
2 not to. 2 results. So | can't say that | saw it on June
3 EARLE, Q.C: 3 3rd. | can say there was a July meeting with
4 Q. Okay. Go uptoview, | think you can - 4 Helly Hansen and that’s wherethe results
5 REGISTRAR: 5 were.
6 Q. Thismight be agood time for a break. 6 EARLE, Q.C.:
7 COMMISSIONER: 7 Q. Inany event, somewhere, June/duly, it came to
8 Q. Whorotatesit? Do you or - 8 your notice?
9 MS. FARRELL: 9 MS. FARRELL:
10 A. It'snot us. 10 A. Yes
11 REGISTRAR: 11 EARLE, Q.C:
12 Q. -- orthelady could do it with her mouse, if 12 Q. Andyou -- because | believe you’ ve been here
13 they wish. 13 for the entire hearing pretty well, Ms.
14 MS. FARRELL: 14 Farrell. Isthat correct?
15 A. Oh,I'm sorry, okay. 15 MS. FARRELL:
16 COMMISSIONER: 16 A. Inadditionto my day job, yes.
17 Q. Thisis above and beyond the call of duty 17 EARLE, Q.C::
18 really. | think we'll take the break and 18 Q. Yes and you'll recall theexercisel went
19 somebody will rotate it. 19 through with Mr. Collinson thefirst two
20 MR.VOKEY: 20 answers?
21 A. Oh, therewe go. 21 MS. FARRELL:
22 MS. FARRELL: 22 A Yes
23 A. Wegqotit. 23 EARLE, Q.C.:
24 ROIL, Q.C.: 24 Q. Andthe fact of the matter isthat when we
25 Q. Just keep rotating. 25 look at it, we have 30 percent who strongly
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1 disagree or disagree that they have no 1 original number as it wasan action more
2 difficulty completing the face seal for take 2 towardsthe size of thesuit and having a
3 off and landing, but we only have 22 percent 3 custom suit made. Additional information
4 who strongly disagree or disagreethat | am 4 provided by one of the committee members" --
5 ableto pull zipper suit all theway to the 5 sorry. Yes, "additional information provided
6 top. So interestingly enough, an eight 6 by one of the committee members was provided.
7 percent difference. When that cameto you 7 One of the individuals who are requesting a
8 people, did that trigger any thought there may 8 custom suit has problems during the BST-R
9 be an issue here other than the zipper? 9 exiting the helicopter exercise. Suit came up
10 MS. FARRELL: 10 over the individual’s head during the
11  A. Asl said toyou yesterday, the zipper was the 11 exercise. Thefit of the suit for some people
12 primary focus because inthe absenceof a 12 is unacceptable. Isit possible to revert to
13 Zipper that is-- or | guess, witha very 13 the old suits for theseindividuals while
14 stiff zipper, it isvery difficult to achieve 14 waiting on certification for modifications?'
15 the face seal. So we were still investigating 15 Soit seems to me now we havea new
16 the extent to which the zipper -- onewas, in 16 safety issue being in there, that the suit fit
17 fact, aknock on effect into the other, and so 17 could be so poor as to present problems with
18 our focuswas to try and get the zippersto 18 egress. Do you agree with that?
19 relax to the point where we could then assess. 19 MS. FARRELL:
20 EARLE, Q.C.: 20 A. Therewas aconcern raised that an individual
21 Q. But my question is, did that difference 21 who was going through BST had a problem with a
22 trigger any concern on your part that there 22 suit. The challenge with BsT, and | think
23 might be an issue other than zippers that was 23 this has also come up in previous testimony,
24 leading to a poor face seal? 24 that we don’t do adedicated fit testing at
25 MS. FARRELL: 25 Marine Ingtitute. This specific request
Page 58 Page 60
1 A. Asl sad, our focuswasonthe zippersand 1 turned to "can | go back and use the old suit
2 trying to correct the zippers. Then we would 2 instead of using the suit that Marine
3 move to the next step. 3 Institute gave me?" to which we said "no, you
4 EARLE, Q.C: 4 can't do that."
5 Q. | takeit then your answer is no. 5 EARLE, Q.C.:
6 MS. FARRELL: 6 Q. Why couldn’'t you do that?
7 A. I'm telling you that our focus was the 7 MS. FARRELL:
8 Zippers. It's consistent with what | told you 8 A. Ifyoudliketogo to the presentation that
9 yesterday. 9 was attached to the August 2nd committee
10 EARLE, Q.C:: 10 minutes, | think that'll tell you.
11 Q. Solet’'sgo on tothe June 21st minute, and 11 Unfortunately, these have no page numbers, but
12 you'll noticethat the description of the 12 if you turn to page four, it says suit
13 action seems to have been expanded. It seems 13 modifications Terra Nova. It references a
14 to be alittle bit inconsistent with the way 14 ProAct number and an additional question that
15 that the things are done elsewhere, but the 15 was raised at the June OHS meeting. It says
16 action is now described "the Helly Hansen suit 16 "the Mustang suits do not meet the
17 does not fit all personnel offshore. Custom 17 certification standards, are no longer used in
18 sizesare required for some individuals who 18 the east coast offshore environment and
19 have unique sizing. Onshore follow up 19 therefore will not be used during training."
20 required. Please update this entry with 20 And then this goeson to talk about where we
21 actionsto date." Then the May 31st response 21 are with theissues with respect to the
22 isthereand | won't go through that. We've 22 survey, with respect to the wrist seals, the
23 aready been through that. And then we have 23 work that we're doing in terms of suit
24 the June 21st update, "committeefelt this 24 modifications and the fact that we will
25 should remain open and tracked under the 25 continue to update people aswe -
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1 EARLE, Q.C. 1 COMMISSIONER:
2 Q. Areyou saying that the Mustang suit lost its 2 Q. Yes Mr. Earle.
3 certification? 3 EARLE, Q.C.:
4 MS. FARRELL: 4 Q. Okay. Just wondering if it was my job to turn
5 A. TheMustang suit was not designed to the most 5 the mike on or it came on automatically. So
6 recent CGSB standard and we were looking for a 6 if we could go to the July 12th minutes and
7 dual certified suit. We wanted a suit that 7 we'll see that the July 12th update is
8 was certified to the marine and the aviation 8 "awaiting response from onshore. Note: member
9 standard. 9 of this committee would prefer to have
10 EARLE, Q.C:: 10 certified suit and is prepared to wait" and
11 Q. Yes | redize you wanted a marine and 11 not much more added to it than that. Then we
12 aviation standard suit. You decided to go 12 go August 2nd 2008, the update, and you've
13 with adual. 13 aready referred to a presentation which was
14 MS. FARRELL: 14 not included with the minutes we received, but
15 A. Yes 15 thank you for adding it overnight. August 2nd
16 EARLE, Q.C.: 16 update "presentation reviewed. Background on
17 Q. But- 17 suit certification reviewed. Reviewed issues
18 MS. FARRELL: 18 raised with suit. Mustang suitswill not be
19 A. So the Mustang suit couldn’'t meet that 19 used. Committee member raised the issue that
20 standard. 20 the process is taking too long for the people
21 EARLE, Q.C.: 21 who the suits do not fit. Issueiswith the
22 Q. -theMustang suit would still have met the 22 certification and isbeing worked with the
23 helicopter transportation suit standard. 23 applicable parties. Committee member stated
24 MS. FARRELL: 24 that there were other suits being used.
25 A. Itdidn't meet the dual standard. That’s what 25 Follow up required. Action by Es& SR advisor."
Page 62 Page 64
1 this was saying. 1 So you indicated that the position of
2 MR.VOKEY: 2 Suncor or Petro-Canada asit was, | believe at
3 A. Andl thinkit'sfair to say - 3 that point in time, was that the suit that you
4 EARLE, QC. 4 wanted to use had to be one with dud
5 Q. No, hold -- excuseme, Mr. Vokey. Ms. 5 certification?
6 Farrell, did the Mustang suit, at that point 6 MS. FARRELL:
7 intime, meet the helicopter transportation 7 A. That'scorrect.
8 suit - 8 EARLE, Q.C.
9 MS. FARRELL: 9 Q. Andif wegothento the August 23rd meeting
10 A. Thesingle standard, yes. 10 and we seethat this August 23rd update
11 EARLE, QC. 11 "Cougar confirmed that the only suit used by
12 Q. Yes, thank you. 12 the three operators, Hibernia, Husky and
13 MS. FARRELL: 13 Petro-Canada, for TerraNova FPSO, Sea Rosg,
14 A. Not the dual standard that we had requested. 14 Glomar Grand Banks, Henry Goodrich and the
15 EARLE, QC.: 15 Hibernia Platform isthe HHE452." So this
16 Q. Now Mr. Vokey? 16 appears to be a response to the suggestion by
17 MR.VOKEY: 17 a committee member that another suit was
18  A. No, the question is answered. 18 available for use?
19 EARLE, QC. 19 MS. FARRELL:
20 Q. Thank you. To modify Rumboldt, he who must be 20 A. That’scorrect.
21 obeyed hastold me that we've reached break 21 EARLE, Q.C:
22 time. 22 Q. Andthe presentation wasagain given to this
23 COMMISSIONER: 23 group because thisis areflection of the fact
24 Q. Wel take 15 minutes. 24 that you have two paralel, if you will,
25 (BREAK) 25 Occupational Health and Safety Committees
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1 meeting on basically a six-week rotation with 1 Occupational Health and Safety Committees from
2 a committee meeting every three weeks, but the 2 al the offshore operations?
3 individuals who will see -- be together, they 3 MS. FARRELL:
4 get together every six weeks. 4 A That'swhat | understand. | don't get to
5 MS. FARRELL: 5 attend those meetings, and we actually don’t
6 A. In our world, by virtue of our rotation 6 get the minutes of them until sometime
7 schedule, we do most things twice. 7 afterwards, but that’s certainly what this
8 EARLE, Q.C. 8 appears to say.
9 Q. Sothenwe go to September 12th and if we go 9 EARLE, Q.C.
10 to page two, you see the September 13th 10 Q. That'swhat you would take from this?
11 update, and | takeit NTR means nothing to 11 MS. FARRELL:
12 report? 12 A. That'swhat | would interpret, yes.
13 MS. FARRELL: 13 EARLE, Q.C:
14  A. That'scorrect. 14 Q. Thenwe say "if there are personnel who need
15 EARLE, Q.C.: 15 modified suits because of physical attributes,
16 Q. And October 4th, we get another NTR update. 16 names areto beforwardedtoleads. Again,
17 Correct? 17 thisis not related to comfort issues.”
18 MS. FARRELL: 18 MS. FARRELL:
19 A. That's correct. 19 A, Um-hm.
20 EARLE, QC. 20 EARLE, QC.
21 Q. And then October 25th, "waiting for Transport 21 Q. Soitappears to be still on the table that
22 Canada to set a meeting. No additional 22 suitsdon’t fit because of the nature of the
23 information at thistime." | take it that the 23 body of individual employees.
24 Transport Canada reference is about the issue 24 MS. FARRELL:
25 of certification of amodified suit? 25 A. | think the presentation probably said it
Page 66 Page 68
1 MS. FARRELL: 1 better. I’'m not sure who wrote the minutes,
2 A. That'scorrect. 2 but there' s no question that we were trying to
3 EARLE, QC: 3 distinguish between people who had fit issues
4 Q. Then if we go to November 15th, we have 4 that impacted their mobility and their ability
5 another NTR, correct? 5 to perform in the suit from people who said "l
6 MS. FARRELL: 6 think thewrist sealsaretoo tight,” those
7 A. Correct. 7 typesof issues. SO wewerevery clearin
8 EARLE, QC.: 8 saying "bring forward your issues. We're not
9 Q. And December 6th, we see that on December 6th, 9 as concerned about the fact that the suits
10 "presentation reviewed. Issue still being 10 aren't comfortable. We're concerned about
11 worked." We have noindication what the 11 issues you have with the ability to don and
12 presentation was, unlessit was that earlier 12 operatein the suit."
13 presentation. 13 EARLE, Q.C:
14 MS. FARRELL: 14 Q. | think you will find that it'sthe EH&S
15 A. No, it was a separate presentation. Sorry, | 15 advisor who sits and also acts as secretary to
16 just noticed that. That was the presentation 16 these meetings. So then we go to December
17 where we said to individua s to bring forward 17 27th. We have another NTR. And then January
18 your issues. 18 17th, we're now into 2009, NTRagain. And
19 EARLE, Q.C. 19 February 7th doesn’t appear to have been
20 Q. Andthen it says"suits were discussed at the 20 modified in any way. | don't know whether
21 C-NLOPB session and they are aware of the 21 that’ s an indication of no discussion or -
22 issues with the suits and that all operators 22 MS.FARRELL:
23 arehaving issues." So | take it thisisan 23 A. There' s certainly nothing in the minutes.
24 indication that this issue now has gone to the 24 EARLE, Q.C:
25 meeting that C-NLoPB has of al the 25 Q. Andthen our final minute, February 28th. "No
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1 names of people who have issues with the suit 1 forward, we were prepared to address those as
2 have been forwarded to onshore. One committee 2 well.
3 member stated that the lead was informed, 3 EARLE, Q.C.
4 ES& SR was informed and the committee also knew 4 Q. Ms. Farrell, you' ve been associated with human
5 and could not understand how the name was not 5 resources and labour relations for along time
6 forwarded on." It soundslike somebody’s 6 before moving into your current position, and
7 pretty frustrated at this point and | suspect 7 in that field, you get a pretty good exposure
8 the minutes perhapsdon't reflect the tone 8 to safety issues and behavioural issuesin the
9 with which that statement was made. "The 9 workplace. Would you agree with me that even
10 committee also thought that certification 10 discomfort when it comes to safety care can be
11 issues were being worked for a smaller size 11 an issue which undermines safety?
12 suit. Thiswould allow for agreater choice 12 MS. FARRELL:
13 in suit like the Mustang suits had. Thiswas 13 A. | think there's acontinuum. | know that |
14 not the case. Ane-mail will besent out 14 find the suit uncomfortable in the neck
15 requesting those individuals that have trouble 15 position. | don’'t believe that the discomfort
16 with suit sizing to forward their names to the 16 that | find in the neck position compromises
17 ES& SR advisor"-- sorry, "and the Es& SR advisor 17 my safety. | actually find this suit to be a
18 will maintain and forward the list of names. 18 very effective suit for me.
19 The e-mail will be clear and not intended for 19 EARLE, Q.C.
20 issues such as stiff zippers and wrist sedls." 20 Q. What I’'m talking about is how people respond
21 So clearly, at thispoint in time, the stiff 21 to discomfort when they’ re using safety gear.
22 Zippers and wrist seals had been taken out of 22 MS.FARRELL:
23 the picture, correct? 23 A. Andasl said, you know, if we ask peopleto
24 MS.FARRELL: 24 bring forward issues, and at this stage we
25  A. That's not the content of the e-mail that went 25 were prepared to listen to whatever people
Page 70 Page 72
1 out to staff. | was actually asked to draft 1 brought forward. We didn't suggest a
2 the e-mail that was issued so that we could be 2 template. We simply said "bring forward your
3 clear about what it is we were asking for. So 3 issues, whatever they are."
4 again, | don't write the minutes of the 4 EARLE, Q.C:
5 meeting, but | know that the e-mail that we 5 Q. Now butI’'m asking you to address a general
6 sent, in terms of what we were asking people 6 principle of safety management, and I'll put
7 toidentify for us, was clear. 7 iton avery smplelevel. If yougot a
8 EARLE, Q.C. 8 person who isin the upper extremes, as| am,
9 Q. I'mnot surel understand what you' re saying. 9 without much hair and you ask them to wear a
10 Well, what did the e-mail say? 10 hard hat andit’s just got ahard plastic
11 MS. FARRELL: 11 insideit, asopposedto onethat has some
12 A. Thee-mail essentially took the quote from the 12 sort of covering on it so it doesn’t chafe, do
13 December meeting that was in the presentation 13 we understand, asa safety principle, that
14 about ability to don and perform in the suit. 14 you' re going to get a better compliance if we
15 EARLE, Q.C.: 15 use the one that’ s comfortable?
16 Q. Wadl,why didn'tit reflect that wrist seals 16 MS. FARRELL:
17 and stiff zippers were not what it was about? 17 A. Again, there's degrees of discomfort. Soit's
18 MS. FARRELL: 18 avery broad question you're asking me.
19 A. Thee-mail? 19 EARLE, Q.C.:
20 EARLE, Q.C.: 20 Q. Um-hm.
21 Q. Um. 21 MS. FARRELL:
22 MS. FARRELL: 22 A. What | cansay is-
23  A. Because we wanted the workforce to bring 23 EARLE, Q.C.:
24 forward their issues. Ultimately, if we ended 24 Q. It'sa principle-- it's aquestion onthe
25 up with comfort issues being part of what came |25 principlelevel. That's exactlyit. It's
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1 intended to be broad. 1 hindsight, but the question -- | have a series

2 MS. FARRELL: 2 of questions for you, and I'll put them

3 A. Andmy principlewith respect to the suit, 3 together. Wasthere an issue with even

4 I’veworn the suit, I’ve used itin my BST 4 letting one person fly with a suit that didn’t

5 recurrent, the suit is not comfortable, but | 5 fit?

6 find the suit particularly effective. So1’m 6 MS. FARRELL:

7 prepared to suffer some discomfort. 7 A. | think that wedid the best wecould to

8 EARLE, Q.C.: 8 understand the issues and we've dl learned

9 Q. Ms Farrdl, I'msurethat asamanager, you 9 from this, and | think we have in place now a
10 don't evaluate the likely behaviour of 10 practice that is recognized by the
11 employees in the workplace on the basis solely 11 Transportation Safety Board as a best
12 of how you react, but you work on the basis of 12 practice. So have we learned? | think we've
13 some of our knowledge about how peoplewill |13 learned many things by virtue of what we've
14 react generally to a situation. 14 been through, and I’ d like to hope, frankly,
15 MS. FARRELL: 15 that through this Inquiry and this process, we
16 A. Wdl, and onthat, | can share with you, when 16 can continue to learn and continueto find
17 | did my BST and we're sitting there on the 17 way's to improve.
18 pool deck waiting to do our HUET dunking, and 18 EARLE, Q.C.:
19 no onein the course knew who | wasor what my |19 Q. Okay, that’san answer to that question. Is
20 position was, without question, everyone said 20 there, again with the luxury of 20/20
21 "we don't like the suits because they’re not 21 hindsight, is there something else that should
22 comfortable," but at least four individuals 22 have been done, in terms of the
23 said to me "but if | have to go in the water, 23 communi cation/education of people when these
24 I'd prefer thissuit." That was their direct 24 new suits came in so that we would have had a
25 feedback, and as-- | mean, at this stage, | 25 more informative response from people?

Page 74 Page 76

1 think it's easy to isolate the people that 1 MR. VOKEY:

2 were complaining about the comfort of the 2 A. | certainly think, on ago-forward basis,

3 suit. A large percentage of our workforce 3 based on what we've heard, based on what we' ve

4 actually really like these suitsand asMr. 4 learned, there can beand will be further

5 Stacey said, saw them as an absolute 5 engagement. | think that’sfair to say, yes.

6 continuous improvement over where we were. 6 MS. FARRELL:

7 EARLE, Q.C.: 7 A. Andl actudly think we haveto extend that

8 Q. But we also honour the principle in the 8 into other areas, such as our basic survival

9 workplace that the safety of any one employee 9 training, to make sure that everybody getsthe
10 isjust asimportant as the safety of all the 10 kind of instruction that | got, frankly, when
11 other employees. Soit’s, I'm sure you will 11 | went and did my BST, because for me, that
12 agree, not a sufficient or appropriate answer 12 was probably the best instruction | could have
13 to say "well, the majority of people were okay 13 gotten in the most realistic circumstance. So
14 with these suits.” We had to have everybody 14 | think much more that we can do to improve.
15 okay with the suits. 15 EARLE, Q.C::
16 MS. FARRELL: 16 Q. How do you people feel about the fact that C-
17 A. And| think that’s what we were trying to get 17 NLOPB got everyone of these minutes and had
18 to. 18 the issue brought up at their joint meeting
19 EARLE, Q.C: 19 and itself appears to have just let things go?
20 Q. Yeah, okay. Solooking back onit with, as 20 Again, with 20/20 hindsight -
21 Mr. Stacey said, you know, the 20/20 hindsight |21 MR. VOKEY:
22 of after the fact, you know, | accept that’s 22 A. Asindicated the -
23 one of the great things about being a lawyer 23 EARLE, Q.C.
24 asking questions after a problem has happened, 24 Q. -doyou think they should have picked up on
25 you know, you have the luxury of 20/20 25 something on this?
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1 MR. VOKEY: 1 EARLE, Q.C.
2 A. Asindicated the other day, we have regularly 2 Q. - of their involvement on the issue? Because
3 quarterly meetings with the C-NLOPB. We also 3 | haveto tell you, inwhat's been made
4 have ad hoc meetingswith themto discuss 4 availableto me, | haven’t seen any evidence
5 issues. Ineach of those meetings, we would 5 of it.
6 discussissues like the flight suits, and they 6 MS. FARRELL:
7 were brought up. | think it'sfair that the 7 A. Obviously it wasdiscussed at their annual
8 Board recognized the complexity of theissue 8 meeting with the workforce and management reps
9 that we were dealing with. They wereaso 9 of the oHs committees. The fact that they ask
10 satisfied with the integrity that we were 10 us as an operator "tell us what you're doing”
11 putting into the evaluation, and as Ms. 11 | think suggests that they saw it as a
12 Farrell indicated, and hindsight is 20/20, but 12 significant concern and they wanted to make
13 we did end up with a best practice, but we did 13 sure we were addressing it.
14 continue to work the issue and | think that’'s 14 EARLE, Q.C::
15 reflected in the minutes here. You know, 15 Q. Butl find it interesting that they had you,
16 we've got hundreds and hundreds of things to 16 as an operator, come in in July and the matter
17 talk about, but suits was always on the agenda 17 came up in the fall meeting of the
18 and suits were important and they still are. 18 Occupational Health and Safety Committee.
19 EARLE, Q.C.: 19 Seems to me that there's not much
20 Q. Yeah. Now I'd likeyoutotell us alittle 20 communication of their involvement with this
21 bit more about the interaction with C-NLOPBOn |21 issueif in thefall people are coming back
22 the suits, Mr. Vokey. 22 and raising it almost asif it'safirst time
23 MS. FARRELL: 23 of going to C-NLOPB.
24 A. The July presentation that | think was 24 MS. FARRELL:
25 attached to one of those sets of minutes was a 25 A. | really think you need to ask the Board what
Page 78 Page 80
1 specific request or in response to a specific 1 they were hearing and doing. | know from our
2 request from the C-NLOPB to address the topic 2 perspective, as the regulator of our operating
3 at our quarterly meeting. So when we goto 3 license, they were certainly holding our feet
4 meet with them, we will present our 4 to thefire saying "what are your issues and
5 environment, health and safety performance for 5 what are you doing?'
6 the quarter and if they have topics that they 6 EARLE, Q.C.
7 want to talk to us about, they will simply say 7 Q. Okay. Let'sturnto another area now, and
8 "and come preparedto tell us about the 8 this is with respect to the number of
9 following topics." That's the way the 9 helicopters. As| understand your evidence,
10 meetings work. So we developed that 10 you have regularly scheduled flights Monday to
11 presentation package. | do recall that there 11 Friday.
12 was considerable attendance by members of the |12 MR. VOKEY:
13 Board. They understood the complexity of 13 A. Yes
14 trying to work within a standard that is set 14 MR. STACEY:
15 by Transport Canada, aviation and marine, both 15 A. Yes, that'scorrect.
16 divisions being different, and one seemingly 16 EARLE, Q.C.:
17 much slower to respond than the other, and so 17 Q. Andthe helicopter capacity with the tank in,
18 they understood that we were working the 18 which seemsto be more the norm than the
19 issue, that we were continuing to engage the 19 exception, is 17 persons.
20 workforce and they expected follow up fromus. |20 MR. VOKEY:
21 EARLE, QC: 21 A. Yes
22 Q. Wasthere, toyour knowledge, communication |22 EARLE, Q.C.
23 from C-NLOPB to your employees - 23 Q. So, and you have aPoB of 120?
24 MS. FARRELL: 24 MR.VOKEY:
25 A. Certainly, | - 25  A. Maximum during operations, yes.
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1 EARLE, Q.C. 1 Q. Yeah. Soyou know, with more than 130 moving
2 Q Maximumduring operations. What's thenorm | 2 back and forth, it doesn’t take much in the
3 like, Mr. Vokey? 3 way of a weather interruptionto get you
4 MR.VOKEY: 4 backlogged, doesit?
5 A. Probably around 115-116. 5 MR. VOKEY:
6 EARLE, Q.C.: 6 A. That'scorrect.
7 Q. 115. Sothat you've got aregular workforce 7 EARLE, QC::
8 and then peopletell me that on just about 8 Q. And when you get fog, three days of no
9 every flight, there's one or two people who 9 flights, thisis not unusual, isit?
10 are headed out asvendor representatives or 10 MR. VOKEY:
11 working for one of your contractors who are 11 A. Certaintimes of the year, that’sright.
12 out for a short visit, that might be two-three 12 EARLE, Q.C.:
13 days, might be aweek, but not necessary a 13 Q. Certaintimes of the year. | gather summer or
14 full hitch. Would you agree with that? 14 what passes for summer is the worst for fog.
15 MR. VOKEY: 15 MR. VOKEY:
16 A. | can't comment on what it istoday, but when 16 A. Yes, fromsay Mayto August would be the
17 | was an offshore installation manager, that 17 worst, but fog, we get fog every month.
18 would be typical, yes. 18 EARLE, Q.C.
19 EARLE, Q.C. 19 Q. Our besttime of theyear isa good fishing
20 Q. Sofair statementthat inatypical 21-day 20 making time, September month. So surely, if
21 period, we're talking about moving somewhere |21 you had another helicopter available, when
22 around 125-130 people in each direction. 22 you' re dealing with backlogs, you have another
23 MR.VOKEY: 23 17 seats. It seemsto me that you could avoid
24 A. Say that again, please? 24 night flying. | mean, it might be an extra
25 EARLE, Q.C: 25 two days instead of one to get 34 extra seats.
Page 82 Page 84
1 Q. In atypical 21-day hitch, you have your 1 MR. VOKEY:
2 regular group who they will moveonce ina 2 A. Isthere aquestion there?
3 rotation, pluswhen you add in these people 3 EARLE, Q.C:
4 who are out for short trips, that the total 4 Q. Yeah, thequestion is,am| out to lunch on
5 number of people who will fly during that 21- 5 that? Am | all wrong?
6 day period in each direction and for each 6 MR.VOKEY:
7 direction is somewhere in the range of 125-130 7 A. I'll answer the question. As Mr. Pritchard
8 people? 8 indicated in the joint panel last week, there
9 MR.VOKEY: 9 isa potential to be backlogged as many as
10 A. Ithinkif you check, you know, with Cougar, 10 eight-nine-ten helicopters. You know, if
11 it would be higher. The exact number, | don’t 11 we've got, you know, two or threeflightsto
12 know, but it would be higher than 125. 12 our assets in the day, our operations, say the
13 EARLE, Q.C: 13 Henry Goodrich and the FPSO, Hibernia's got
14 Q. Okay, that'sfine. So five daysof flightsa 14 two or threeflights, and if you don’t get
15 week ina 21-day period, on average, you're 15 flightsin for two or three or four dayslike
16 talking 15 flights for passengers. 16 you indicate, you know, the backlog that
17 MR. VOKEY: 17 you're talking about is not just one flight or
18 A. Okay. 18 two flights. They can be into the double
19 EARLE, Q.C: 19 digitsand we take great effort to manage it
20 Q. Sodoing the math in my head, which is always 20 such that it’ s not, and most times like that,
21 dangerous, | make that about 255 seats each 21 we will transport people by vessel to ensure
22 way per hitch. 17 times 15. 22 that we don’t create that type of backlog.
23 MR. VOKEY: 23 But having one additional helicopter, when
24 A. You'reclose 24 you've got ten flights backlogged, is not
25 EARLE, Q.C.. 25 going to do anything for you, and when you're
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1 talking to me, you' re talking about one asset 1 DACON scoops on the standby vessels.
2 like TerraNova. So then Hibernia's got an 2 EARLE, Q.C:
3 issue, Glomar Grand Banks, Henry Goodrich, Sea 3 Q. So do you multiply sea state for those
4 Rose, soit'snot just one asset. Wetakea 4 purposes for issues of night flying? | mean,
5 look at all the people that move to and from 5 does it have an increased -
6 and having an additional helicopter, while it 6 MR.VOKEY:
7 might quite conceivably mitigate one or two or 7 A. No.
8 praobably three night flights, you still have 8 EARLE, Q.C:
9 that backlog that you have to mitigate and you 9 Q. -lack of tolerance, if you will?
10 will still be required to do night flightsto 10 MR. VOKEY:
11 mitigate. 11 A. No, itwouldn’t be six metres in the day and
12 EARLE, Q.C.: 12 four metres at night. You know, it's six
13 Q. Doyou accept that thereis anissue with 13 metres.
14 night flights beyond the absence of auto hover 14 EARLE, Q.C.
15 for rescue purposes, in that the visua 15 Q. Okay. Now if we could go to dlide 23?
16 reference for a pilot in a ditching 16 REGISTRAR:
17 circumstance poses some of the same problems 17 Q. Of the PowerPoint presentation?
18 that are posed in the rescue situation? 18 EARLE, Q.C.
19 MR. VOKEY: 19 Q. Of the PowerPoint presentation, yes, please.
20 A. | think you'll have to ask Cougar that 20 REGISTRAR:
21 question. They'rethe specidistsin that 21 Q. 23?
22 area. But wedo manage our business overall 22 EARLE, Q.C:
23 and Cougar has no issues whatsoever with night 23 Q. 23,2-3. Youtak about theright to know.
24 flying provided the other criteria conditions 24 "All workers have the right to know about any
25 that we talked about previously are met and 25 potentially hazardous situation which may be
Page 86 Page 88
1 that we do have sAR backup, weather conditions | 1 encountered in the workplace and the level of
2 are favourable, and things of that nature. 2 risks associated with the hazards. On an
3 EARLE, Q.C: 3 ongoing basis, al hazards reported are
4 Q. Arethe -- fromyour perspective, are the 4 summarized on adaily TLM report, which is
5 weather conditions criteria the same for night 5 reviewed at each shift handover." Do you
6 flying asthey are for day flying? 6 consider that to extend to hazards related to
7 MR.VOKEY: 7 helicopter flying?
8 A. For TerraNova, | can speak on behalf of Terra 8 MR.VOKEY:
9 Nova, for the FPSO, thecriteria is more 9 A. Goahead.
10 stringent for night flying and it’snot as 10 MR. STACEY:
11 much as the weather, it’s vessel motion. All 11 A. | think aswe said earlier that it depends on
12 the vessel movementsfor motion arecut in 12 the situation where the hazard would be
13 half for night flying. So if it's three 13 reported. Certainly things that our employees
14 degrees pitch and roll during the day, it's 14 bring forward to us, we recognize those issues
15 oneand a half at night. Ifit's 12 metre 15 and are interested in hearing from them.
16 heave at an acceleration of one metre per 16 EARLE, Q.C.:
17 second, that’s cut in half during the night. 17 Q. Wdl, I'mthinking particularly of the items
18 EARLE, Q.C.: 18 which you, now with Suncor’ s aviation support,
19 Q. From Terra Nova s perspective, is seastate 19 if we can goto Tab 44, or sorry, dlide 44 of
20 only a vessel -- when | say vessel, | mean 20 your presentation? You'll see under aviation
21 FPSO, a vessel movement issue? 21 support, the second two items. Have you got
22 MR.VOKEY: 22 that there?
23 A. No,it'salso, and | think it was discussed in 23 MS. FARRELL:
24 previous panels, itis aso about recovery 24 A. Yes.
25 and, you know, we do have FRcs and we do have |25 EARLE, Q.C.:
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1 Q. "Tracking of al service bulletins and 1 getinto a semantic debate about what was
2 airworthiness directives mandated by 2 meant by implementation at that point in time
3 regulatory authorities and providing a risk 3 because I'm going to refer you to his answer.
4 assessment and mitigation plans for all 4 Therewas adecision made by cCAPPto put a
5 bulletins. Providing ongoing civil aviation 5 worker representative on an implementation
6 defect occurrence reports, CADOR, monitoring.” 6 committee, and indeed going back to your
7 Would you consider these bits of information 7 Occupational Health and Safety Committee
8 to be encompassed in the employee’ sright to 8 Minutes for that time period demonstrates that
9 know, as it relates to helicopter 9 the issue came forward to your committee and
10 transportation? 10 names were solicited and it even records a
11 MS. FARRELL: 11 gentleman who was aunion activist at the
12 A. | can probably help out here. Prior or post 12 time, Sean Barry, put forward hisname as
13 return to service, what we did within Suncor 13 being a volunteer for that purpose, and then
14 is set up asingle ProAct and we've indicated 14 HUEBA comes off the involvement until 2009
15 to our OHS committees and in our general 15 when we are actually into implementation. Now
16 safety meetings any updates that we have with 16 the statement was made by Mr. Barnes in his
17 respect to helicopter operations, we will 17 evidence that the operators had decided to
18 provide it throughthat ProAct. So for 18 involve employees through their occupational
19 example, before Christmas, there was an update |19 health and safety committee processto HUEBA
20 that went in in relation to some enhancements 20 issues. Canyou offer anything asto why
21 that Sikorsky was making to the S-92. Sowe 21 there does not appear to have been any
22 summarized those, put themin that ProAct. We |22 interaction with the occupational health and
23 will generally cover them at the OHS committee |23 safety structure over all that period on the
24 minutes or meetingsand our general safety 24 HUEBA?
25 meetings as well. That's part of our

Page 90 Page 92
1 commitment in terms of communication. 1 MR. VOKEY:
2 EARLE, Q.C: 2 A Ithink | said during thejoint testimony
3 Q. Letmebring you to aspecific example. We 3 there referencewas to have a worker rep
4 al know about the cracks in the mounting of 4 available for implementation. We also heard
5 the gearbox that have been -- there's a 5 testimony that it came off therails right
6 direction now that that be -- these parts of 6 after that, and actually went back to the
7 the helicopter be checked every ten hours of 7 individual companies for them to assess
8 flying. So under your new regime, would that 8 potential medical risk, and typicaly for
9 information flow out to the employees? 9 something likethat, the engagement would
10 MS. FARRELL: 10 happen after we had a solution and at that
11 A. It'sthere. 11 point there was no solution.
12 EARLE, Q.C: 12 EARLE, Q.C:
13 Q. Andthat, | takeit, isachance? 13 Q. Soyoudon't seearole for employeesin the
14 MS. FARRELL: 14 process where, for instance, a decision would
15 A. We committedin our returnto service -- 15 be made on arebreather or a hybrid or a
16 people wanted to know more, so we said that’s 16 compressed gas type unit?
17 our commitment, and if there is a question and 17 MR. VOKEY:
18 we haven’'t been ontop of it interms of 18 A. Those units are extremely technical. There's
19 getting it out quickly, ittypically gets 19 alot of issues to be addressed, and, you
20 raised through ProAct, so one way or the other 20 know, notwithstanding the time, there were a
21 it'sout there. 21 lot of evaluationsdone. On ago forward
22 EARLE, Q.C.: 22 basis as a continuous improvement, and | think
23 Q. If we couldturnto the HUEBA, and back in 23 you'll see the difference between 2003 and
24 2003, in Mr. Barnesevidence, therewas a 24 today, there is significant further worker
25 decision made by caPP,and I’'m not going to 25 engagement over the last seven yearsand it’s
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1 a continuous improvement initiative for us. 1 Q. Thenextareaisthe zero harm cards. Do you
2 EARLE, Q.C.: 2 accept that there have been issues with the
3 Q. Pardon? 3 zero harm cards to the extent that, you know,
4 MS.VOKEY: 4 there' sactually been a push by management
5 A. Wecontinue to engageour people. It isa 5 members of occupational health and safety
6 continuous improvement. We engage today more | 6 committee saying to the employee members, now
7 than we did historically in the industry, and 7 you fellow got to lead the way on this, and we
8 | believe today we engage our people quite 8 expect to see a couple of these cards from you
9 fully. 9 every hitch?
10 MS. FARRELL: 10 MR. VOKEY:
11 A. Ithinkif I could just add to that, we've all 11 A. Yes, and we don’'t apologize.
12 acknowledged that HUEBA wasn’t avery good |12 MR. STACEY:
13 examplefor avariety of reasons. I’m not 13 A. Weencourage and expect participation in our
14 surethat any of us sitting here can address 14 exposure-based safety program, and the zero
15 why somebody was put forward in 2003, why it |15 harm card is a great example of how wetry to
16 fell off the Minutes of the meeting or 16 seek that out from the workforce.
17 whatever. | think we've all indicated that 17 EARLE, Q.C::
18 we'vegot a lot to learn from this example, 18 Q. Andareyou satisfied that you have eliminated
19 but I actually think that our oHs Committee on 19 the snitch factor, or are youjust in a
20 the Terra Nova FPsO is a fully engaged 20 position where you're saying it's something
21 committee, and I’ ve got to be honest, | think 21 that we will have to continue to work against?
22 they add a huge amount of value, and we commit |22 MR. STACEY:
23 to that engagement, we continue that 23 A. | think any engagement we have with the
24 engagement. HUEBA, not agreat example, let's |24 workforce and with safety is something that
25 learn what we can from it and move forward, 25 requires constant stewardship. The only way
Page 94 Page 96
1 and | think that’s what we committed. 1 that weimprove isby paying attention to it
2 EARLE, Q.C: 2 and by listening to the workforce and
3 Q. You've answered the question | have then. 3 encouraging, and we'll continue to do that.
4 What I’'m hearing you saying is, again with the 4 MR. VOKEY:
5 20/20 hindsight, you see meritin further 5 A. If| canadd tothat, wedo have internal
6 level of worker involvement in earlier stages? 6 empirical validation that the more hazards
7 MS. FARRELL: 7 that are identified in the workplace, that the
8 A. Two great examples; the water ingress testing 8 frequency of incidentsis drastically reduced,
9 of the E-452 suit, the water ingress testing 9 so the higher reporting, the lower frequency
10 ontheHTS1 suit, the oHs Committee worker 10 of incidents. So if we mandate that people
11 reps were there, attended, monitored. | think 11 have toreport hazards, I’mnot going to
12 those are great examples. 12 apologize for that. We get the results that
13 EARLE, Q.C:: 13 we're looking for.
14 Q. And whilecomparisons are al it is, Ms. 14 EARLE, Q.C::
15 Farrell, | would have to say having gone 15 Q. Thoseare my questions, gentlemen, and Ms.
16 through Minutes of both organizations, | would |16 Farrell.
17 certainly agree that your Occupational Health 17 MS. FARRELL:
18 and Safety Committee system is arobust one, 18 A. Thank you.
19 and there are not a lot of shrinking violets 19 MR. STACEY:
20 on your committees. 20 A. Thank you.
21 MR.VOKEY: 21 MR.VOKEY:
22 A. Andthat’swhat we'relooking for. Welook 22 A. Thank you.
23 for people to give usfeedback asto what 23 COMMISSIONER:
24 we're doing. 24 Q. Thank you, Mr. Earle.
25 EARLE, QC.: 25 EARLE, QC.:
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1 Q. | don't often pitch one right over the plate 1 A. That'sthetwo that I'm familiar with, yes.

2 for someone to hit the centre field like that. 2 MS. O'BRIEN:

3 COMMISSIONER: 3 Q. Okay,and Mr. Sacutasaid that there wasa

4 Q. Now counsdl for the families? 4 requirement that those two pieces of equipment

5 MR. MARTIN: 5 be certified by Transport Canada. Do you agree

6 Q. | haveno questions, Mr. Commissioner. 6 with that?

7 COMMISSIONER: 7 MR. VOKEY:

8 Q. Noquestions. Counsel for the estates of the 8 A. That wascertainly our belief during that

9 pilots? 9 testimony. However, during follow-up, it has
10 MS. O'BRIEN: 10 come to our attention that the life vests are
11 Q. Yes, Commissioner. 11 certified by Transport Canada, but thereis no
12 MR. GARY VOKEY, MR. BRIAN STACEY, MS. MICHELE FARRELL: |12 certification body that looksat the suits,

13 EXAMINATION BY MS. KATE O'BRIEN: 13 and we've been -- I've had discussions

14 MS. O'BRIEN: 14 subsequent to that with Cougar, and al they

15 Q. Thank you, panel. Kate O’'Brien. I'm here 15 indication to meisthat they are working the

16 representing the families of the deceased 16 issue and they would be more than willing to

17 flight crew. In the course of your 17 talk about it during their testimony.

18 presentation yesterday, at some point one of 18 MS. O'BRIEN:

19 you said that Cougar issomewhat different 19 Q. Okay, sofrom the operator’s perspective, do

20 from the other contractors. So my first area 20 you have any requirements at all with respect

21 of questioning isreally to kind of flesh out 21 to the suits that the flight crew wear?

22 some of those differences. The one that you 22 MR.VOKEY:

23 specifically mentioned yesterday is that 23 A. No.

24 they’re regulated by a different body, they're 24 MS. O'BRIEN:

25 regulated by Transport Canada? 25 Q. Okay, so redly there’ sonly one piece of
Page 98 Page 100

1 MR. VOKEY: 1 safety equipment that the operators are

2 A That's correct. | think they were my 2 concerned with respect to the pilots and

3 comments. 3 that’sthelife vests?

4 MS. O'BRIEN: 4 MR.VOKEY:

5 Q. Okay,and | believe at that time Mr. Roail 5 A. No, | think we' re concerned with the suits as

6 suggested to you that one other difference was 6 well asthelifevests. Itisimportant for

7 that the don’'t spend as much time on the FPSO. 7 us that what they wear would meet their needs.

8 Do you consider that to be a difference in how 8 MS. O'BRIEN:

9 they are - you know, from the other 9 Q. Okay, but haveyou had -- you’re saying that
10 contractors? 10 you know that thelifevest -- | understood
11 MS. FARRELL: 11 what you were saying was that the life vest,
12 A. No,wedon't. Wehavealot of contractors 12 that you want to be satisfied that it meets
13 that come out for day visits or overnight. We 13 Transport Canada’ s certification?

14 would liketo think, you know, that anybody 14 MS. FARRELL:

15 that comes on that installation are treated 15 A. Ithink in Mr. Sacuta’s testimony, he was
16 the same, and that’ s our intent. 16 saying that we, as operators, focus on Cougar
17 MS. O'BRIEN: 17 meeting their regulatory requirements. The
18 Q. Okay, andin the panel presentation, | believe 18 life vest isa part of their regulatory

19 it was said, not by you, Mr. Vokey, but by Mr. 19 requirement. The suits themselves, though,
20 Sacuta, that the operators are concerned with 20 are not, and | think that's about the

21 really only two elements of safety equipment 21 clarification. So we're concerned that Cougar
22 worn by the pilots, those being the flight 22 holds all aspects of what's required to meet
23 suitsand thelifevests. Would you agree 23 their certification, whether it's for the

24 with that? 24 equipment or thetechnology that they use.
25 MR.VOKEY: 25 The detailsin termsof the suitsis not

Discoveries Unlimited Inc., Ph: (709)437-5028

Page 97 - Page 100




January 21, 2010

Multi-Page™

Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry

Page 101 Page 103
1 something that wewould address. That's 1 be closer to this than either of uswould be.
2 between Cougar and the pilots. 2 MS. O'BRIEN:
3 MS. O’'BRIEN: 3 Q. lunderstand that, and | certainly will be
4 Q. Okay. 4 asking these questions of Cougar, but what I'm
5 MR. FARRELL: 5 really asking you about is to what extent the
6 A. Sothey would have been able to address that. 6 operators, and inthis case Suncor, sees
7 MS. O'BRIEN: 7 itself as having some responsibility or some
8 Q. Okay, sothat’s--that's what I'm trying to 8 involvement in thoseissues. Soif you're
9 get at. 9 telling me we don't, that answers my question
10 MR. VOKEY: 10 right there, but I’ m just trying to clarify at
11 A. Okay, my apologies. 11 this point?
12 MS. O'BRIEN: 12 MR. VOKEY:
13 Q. Sotheissueof flight suitsand whether the 13 A. Okay, when the pilots comeon our facility,
14 flight suits that they wear areup for the 14 when they land at our facility, we take full
15 job, you consider that to be an issue between 15 accountability for everything the pilots do,
16 Cougar and the pilotsand not a concern of 16 and we are pat and parcel of the
17 yours? 17 disembarking, therefuelling, the shutting
18 MR. VOKEY: 18 down, the starting up of helicopters, and on
19 A. That's-- 19 occasion the pilots do comeinto our facility
20 MS. FARRELL: 20 and once they hit the helideck they are part
21 A. It'snot aregulatory requirement that we can 21 and parcel of our crew. Upto that point,
22 monitor. 22 from our perspective, they arecovered by
23 MS. O'BRIEN: 23 their company, Cougar, and Transport Canada,
24 Q. Okay. So because there’sno regulation onit, 24 and the other regulatory bodies.
25 you don’t feel you can monitor it, SO you 25 MS. O'BRIEN:
Page 102 Page 104
1 leave that between Cougar and the pilots? 1 Q. Okay. So doyou take any involvement in
2 MR.VOKEY: 2 whether or not or any concernin whether or
3 A. That'sleftin Cougar’ sworld, that’s correct. 3 not they wear personal locator beacons, or do
4 MS. O'BRIEN: 4 you consider that a Cougar -- an issue between
5 Q. Okay. Thelife vests, because there is 5 Cougar and its pilots?
6 regulation around them, you have -- it’s your 6 MR.VOKEY:
7 concern to the extent that you want to make 7 A. That would be between Cougar, the
8 sure those life vests do meet that regulation? 8 certification authorities, and their pilots.
9 MS. FARRELL: 9 We don't get involved in that.
10 A. All aspects of regulatory compliance. 10 MS. O'BRIEN:
11 MS. O'BRIEN: 11 Q. Similarly for the HUEBA?
12 Q. Right, okay. So for flight suits, no 12 MR. VOKEY:
13 regulations, so that’s not your concern. What 13 A. That’'scorrect, yes.
14 about the personal locator beacons, do you 14 MS. O'BRIEN:
15 know if the pilots wear those? 15 Q. Andasofor helmets?
16 MR.VOKEY: 16 MR.VOKEY:
17 A. I’'mnot aware. 17 A. Correct.
18 MS. O'BRIEN: 18 MS. O'BRIEN:
19 Q. Okay, would that be something that you'd say 19 Q. Okay.Are thereany other -- so we'vejust
20 wasjust a concern between Cougar and the 20 identified for this particular contractor
21 pilots? 21 there was a number of pieces of safety
22 MS. FARRELL: 22 equipment for which you, as operators, don’'t
23 A. | think we're probably not the best position 23 seeyourself asbeing concerned with. Are
24 to respond. It's something that you probably 24 thereany other of your subcontractors for
25 would want to pursue with Cougar. They would |25 whom you don’'t have any requirements or any

Discoveries Unlimited Inc., Ph: (709)437-5028

Page 101 - Page 104




January 21, 2010

Multi-Page™

Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry

Page 105 Page 107
1 say into what safety equipment that they wear? 1 Q. Okay, that’s very responsive to my question.
2 MR.VOKEY: 2 | understood that answer. Y our oversight view
3 A. No, if they're transported either by 3 that you would take in that situation, is that
4 helicopter that's on contract to usor by 4 the same as the oversight view you would take
5 supply vessel and they’ re on our installation, 5 for Cougar, oristhere adifference? I'm
6 they adhere to our policies, procedures, and 6 trying to --
7 practices. 7 MR.VOKEY:
8 MS. O'BRIEN: 8 A. |thinkit'sfair to say in the case of Cougar
9 Q. Okay, sojustto beclear, is Cougar the only 9 being a specialty typeof servicethat is
10 subcontractor for whom you don’t take control 10 under the certification of Transport Canada
11 and responsibility for safety equipment? 11 Aviation, Cougar would be viewed somewhat
12 MS. FARRELL: 12 different.
13 A. Wewould expect to see that they’re audited, 13 MS. O'BRIEN:
14 we would expect to see that if there are 14 Q. Okay, dl right. Similarly with the -- when |
15 deficiencies, they're correct. That would 15 looked into the training standards, thereis
16 apply to Cougar, that would apply to the 16 really specific requirementsfor, it looked to
17 company that suppliesthe drilling rig to us, 17 me, just about every position on the FPSO.
18 it would apply to any of our contractors, but 18 Would that be correct?
19 our due diligence would be more from an audit 19 MS. FARRELL:
20 perspective than it would be from aregulatory 20 A. That'sour intent.
21 compliance. Whilethe workersare working 21 MR.VOKEY:
22 within their own company’s work site, that 22 A. That’sour intent, yes.
23 company is accountable for the management of (23 MS. O'BRIEN:
24 itsworkers. 24 Q. Butthere’snothing in there that covers pilot
25 MS. O'BRIEN: 25 training requirements, correct?
Page 106 Page 108
1 Q. I don'tknow if you just answered yes or no to 1 MS. FARRELL:
2 my question. 2 A. That'scorrect.
3 MR. STACEY: 3 MS. O'BRIEN:
4 A. Maybel could add alittle more. | would go 4 Q. Okay,sol takeit you leave what'srequired
5 down the exact same theme as Ms. Farrell, that 5 for training and experience of the pilots up
6 for the drilling rig, for instance, because we 6 to Cougar, isthat right?
7 were talking specifically about helicopter 7 MR.VOKEY:
8 transportation, on the drilling rig we would 8 A. Thetechnical experience, you're referencing?
9 certainly be interested in the personal 9 MS. O'BRIEN:
10 protective equipment that would beused to 10 Q. Yes
11 execute a given work scope, but TransOceanas |11 MR. VOKEY:
12 the contractor managing the rig and running, 12 A. Yes, that would totally be between Cougar and
13 for instance, a mechanic working in an area 13 the certification authorities that certify the
14 doing work on an engine, it would be 14 pilotsto fly on our specific aircraft, that’s
15 TransOcean’ s responsibility to lay out and set 15 correct.
16 out the specific personal protective 16 MS. O'BRIEN:
17 equipment, the gloves, the eye protection, the 17 Q. Okay. Wouldtherebe -- I'm going to ask,
18 other things that their employees would use to 18 actually, maybe if we could bring up Exhibit
19 execute that work. 19 140, which is -- that’s the contract between
20 MS. O'BRIEN: 20 Petro-Canada and Cougar, and if | could ask to
21 Q. Okay. 21 go to page 35 out of 36. | think | should be
22 MR. STACEY: 22 at - sorry. I’'mjust going to read there on
23 A. Wewould have an oversight view of that, but 23 what’s numbered page 10. So it’s on your left
24 it would be that contractor’ s responsibility. 24 hand side. It says therethat, "Appendix II
25 MS. O'BRIEN: 25 of Exhibit 1, scope of services, crew
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1 qualification/experience” ishereby deleted 1 unique?
2 and replaced with a revised, "crew 2 MS. FARRELL:
3 qualifications, experience, specificto the 3 A If they'reworking in the offshore area, they
4 operations of the helicopter as contained in 4 have to comply with the training and
5 attachment "B" to the amendment”. Now | can 5 qualification standard practice, and our
6 tell you that there was no attachment "B" to 6 regulator will audit us or our contractorsto
7 this contract, and | spoketo your counsel 7 make sure that that happens. So we control
8 today and was supplied it, and it really just 8 the training and qualifications with respect
9 says, "will be supplied”, there’' s no substance 9 to offshore operations. If it's an onshore
10 to what the training qualifications and 10 operation and people work in an onshore
11 experienceis required. It says, "Will be 11 environment, we expect the contractorsto set
12 provided by Cougar"”, and | understand it’s not 12 those standards.
13 yet known whether Cougar ever did provideyou |13 MS. O'BRIEN:
14 with any detail on the qualification and 14 Q. Okay, but, | mean, when someoneisup inan
15 experience of its pilots. 15 helicopter, do you consider that onshore or
16 MR.VOKEY: 16 offshore?
17 A. Thefirst| heard of thiswas this morning, 17 MS. FARRELL:
18 and | have no knowledge of it. 18 A. Wdl, | guesswhat we're saying iswe believe
19 MS. O'BRIEN: 19 that aviation regulation sets out a series of
20 Q. Okay. | would ask if wecould have an 20 things and we expect Cougar to comply with
21 undertaking to find out whether or not Cougar 21 those, and we monitor for compliance to those.
22 ever did supply you with that information. 22 If the pilots come into our jurisdiction, then
23 For the record, what I’'m looking for isto 23 we have to take an accountability to make sure
24 find out -- as part of your contract with 24 that they have what’srequired for them when
25 Cougar there was a section there that referred 25 they’re in the offshore jurisdiction.
Page 110 Page 112
1 to crew qualifications and experience, and the 1 MS. O'BRIEN:
2 contract as I’ ve seen it, indicates that that 2 Q. Okay, I'mstill not sureyou answered my
3 would be provided by Cougar, and | want to 3 question, so I'm going tore-ask it again.
4 know wasiit ever provided to you by Cougar. 4 What I'm wondering is -- | take from this that
5 MR.VOKEY: 5 for Cougar -- with your contract with Cougar
6 A. Okay. 6 interms of thelevel of qualifications and
7 MS. O'BRIEN: 7 experience, and | understand they have to be
8 Q. Soin thiscase fromwhat we'reseeing to 8 licensed pilots, you know, they’re not handing
9 date, and | understand we don’t have all the 9 over the helicopter to anyone, and I’'m not
10 information before us today, but it seems that 10 taking any issue with thelevel of ther
11 you leave what' s necessary for these pilotsin 11 qualifications, that's something we can
12 termsof their qualifications, interms of 12 explore with Cougar, but I’'m just wondering --
13 their experience, up to Cougar to decide and 13 what I'm hearing is that you leave the
14 dictate? 14 decision astowhat is required perhaps over
15 MR. VOKEY: 15 and above -- maybe Cougar has much more
16 A. That'scorrect. 16 rigorous standards than just having a pilots
17 MS. O'BRIEN: 17 licence, they’re probably looking for pilots
18 Q. Okay. Would that be the case with any of your 18 with experience and other things that we all
19 other -- withany of the other offshore 19 look for on resumes over the bare educational
20 workerswho are actually employed by other 20 requirements. So intermsof what standard
21 subcontractors? Would you leave the decision 21 Cougar isrequiring, you leave that decision
22 as towhat level of experience, training, 22 to them?
23 qualification that is necessary up to just the 23 MS. FARRELL:
24 subcontractor do decide, or would Cougar -- or 24  A. That'scorrect.
25 is thisanother example of how Cougar is 25 MS. O'BRIEN:
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1 Q. Somy question is are they unique amongst your 1 MS. O'BRIEN:
2 subcontractorsin that regard, are there any 2 Q. Okay. Sointerms of your -- Cougar would
3 other subcontractors for whom you leave the 3 haveits own occupational health and safety
4 decisions about qualifications and trainings 4 committees operating with Cougar. Isthere
5 exclusively up to the subcontractor? 5 any communication between the two?
6 MR. VOKEY: 6 MS. FARRELL:
7 A. |think asMs. Farrell said, you know, the 7 A. No, not that I'm aware of.
8 subcontractor isworking on our facility. 8 MR.VOKEY:
9 They are aso required to follow the capp 9 A. Notthat I’'m aware of.
10 training qualification standards and 10 MS. O'BRIEN:
11 guidelines. Sowe audit our subcontractors, 11 Q. And the occupational health and safety
12 the Board also audits, but the expectation is 12 committees that you have, the representatives
13 they do meet a certain standard, and the same 13 there aren’t just from your own employees, is
14 appliesto the helicopter pilots asit relates 14 that correct, they’ re also from subcontractors
15 to Transport Canada certification, and any 15 or anyone who's working offshore?
16 requirements Cougar may have. | just want to 16 MR. VOKEY:
17 note here the aviation safety review team that 17 Q. They would be representatives of our employees
18 did thereview of Cougar, one of their very 18 and contractorsworking on that facility,
19 strong pointson Cougar isthat they found, 19 that’s correct.
20 and it wasidentified in the HOTF Report, that 20 MS. O'BRIEN:
21 they did find the pilotsto be well trained 21 Q. Okay, al right. Sointermsof the people
22 and qualified. 22 who are operating, and let’s just take for a
23 MS. O'BRIEN: 23 moment that pilots arereally --they are
24 Q. Sure, andlikel say, that's -- 24 offshoreworkers. | mean, they are, even
25 MR. VOKEY: 25 though they’re not working on the Platform,
Page 114 Page 116
1 A. Butit--fromour perspective, it’s between 1 they are operating -- you know, they’ re doing
2 Cougar and the certification authorities. 2 their job offshore in terms of they’re facing
3 MS. FARRELL: 3 that same environment, that offshore
4 A. Perhaps| can give an example. We would not 4 environment. Would they be the only -- would
5 expect to setthe qualifications for the 5 they be the only sort of offshore workers who
6 instructorsat Marine Institute. We would 6 wouldn’t be -- wouldn’'t have avoice on your
7 expect Marine Institute to determine the level 7 occupational health and safety committees?
8 of expertise and experience of the instructors 8 MS. FARRELL:
9 that they put into our training programs. We 9 A. We're really looking for the community of
10 will audit Marine Institute, and we will look 10 interests that work on the FPSO.
11 at the training of their instructors. If we 11 MS. O'BRIEN:
12 find that there’s some gap or concern, we 12 Q. Okay.
13 would raise that through an audit, but we 13 MS. FARRELL:
14 don't set the requirements for instructors. 14 A. Andthis is thefocus of the occupational
15 MS. O'BRIEN: 15 health and safety committees.
16 Q. | think that’s a good example. So what you're 16 MS. O'BRIEN:
17 saying, | think, is Cougar is not unique, that 17 Q. Okay.
18 thereis other of your subcontractors, such as 18 MR. STACEY:
19 Marine Institute, for whom you leave it up to. 19 A. | could offer another good example of that
20 Okay. Looking at the Occupational Health and 20 would be the supply vessels. They would have
21 Safety Committees that we had a lot of 21 their own occupational health and safety
22 discussionon, | takeit no Cougar employee 22 committees, and they work offshore.
23 sitson those, is that correct? 23 MS. O'BRIEN:
24 MS. FARRELL: 24 Q. And no communication between these different
25 A. No. 25 occupational health and safety committees?
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1 MR. STACEY: 1 MS. O'BRIEN:

2 Q. Notdirectly, to my knowledge, unlessthere 2 Q. Okay, would Cougar have cards?

3 was some interaction that they would have on 3 MR. STACEY:

4 anissue. | couldn’t pull one up now. 4 A. | understand that they do have a program

5 MS. O'BRIEN: 5 called HEEBO, | think, is the -- HEEBO is the

6 Q. Okay, andas part of your auditsof your 6 acronym for it.

7 subcontractors, say, your supply vessels or 7 MS. O'BRIEN:

8 Cougar, is that something that you'd be 8 Q. Sothey haveasimilar --

9 looking at, what's going on with their 9 MR. STACEY:
10 occupational health and safety committees? 10 A. They have asimilar card.
11 MS. FARRELL: 11 MS. O'BRIEN:
12 A. Wewould look at the extent to which they are 12 Q. Sodo those cards flow back to you or are they
13 following al the aspects of their safety 13 just dealt with internally by Cougar?
14 management system, including the regular 14 MR. STACEY:
15 meetings of OHS committees, follow up on 15 A. They're dealt with through Cougar.
16 actions from oHs committees, yes, that would 16 MS. O'BRIEN:
17 be included in the scope of an audit. 17 Q. Allright. Intermsof your -- are you aware
18 MS. O'BRIEN: 18 when you -- whether you've had sort of these
19 Q. Okay, great. Sol takeit you go in there and 19 zero harm reporting cards come back because --
20 you actually look at the Minutes? 20 specifically because of helicopter related
21 MS. FARRELL: 21 incidents?
22 A Yes 22 MS. FARRELL:
23 MS. O'BRIEN: 23 A. Yes, they do.
24 Q. Allright, and the other question | had, we 24 MS. O'BRIEN:
25 discussed the zero harm reporting cards that 25 Q. Okay, and has that been even before March

Page 118 Page 120

1 you use and you said that these are actually 1 12th? | know everyoneis at a heightened

2 placed on site with some of your 2 sensitivity since --

3 subcontractors. Dol understand that part 3 MS. FARRELL:

4 correctly? 4 A, |think thefirst -- the first occurrence that

5 MR. VOKEY: 5 | saw on the oHS Committee Minutes was 2002.

6 A. They areon our facility for anyone to take 6 It'sanormal part of our business. People

7 advantage of if they want to. 7 consider that to be a part of their workplace,

8 MS. O'BRIEN: 8 so if they see a hazard, they’ll raiseit.

9 Q. Okay, | thought | had heard you say, and | 9 MR.VOKEY:
10 think it was you, Mr. Vokey, that if one of 10 A. Justto beclear on that, if an employee or a
11 your workers saw a hazard, even when they were |11 contractor raises an issue that has to do with
12 off siteat the premises of one of your 12 helicopters, for the most part, in terms of
13 subcontractors -- 13 the response, it goes directly back to Cougar
14 MR. STACEY: 14 and we do engage Cougar in theresponse. We
15 A. That wasme. 15 don’'t just answer it as an operator. We have
16 MS. O'BRIEN: 16 our logistics and commercial people that are
17 Q. Oh,itwas you, I'm sorry, Mr. Stacey, that 17 in continuous liaison with Cougar to respond
18 they could fill out acard either when they 18 to issues that would be raised to us.
19 got back or there would be a card there at the 19 MS. O'BRIEN:
20 subcontractor’s site? Is that -- did | 20 Q. Okay, thank you. All right, my last areaof
21 understand that? 21 questioning really has to do with your
22 MR. STACEY: 22 emergency response organization, dide 63.
23 A. That'scorrect, many of our subcontractors 23 Maybe if we could go to that just to help us,
24 have programs similar to zero harm, and have 24 and | understand, Ms. Farrell, from what you
25 cards at their facilities. 25 were saying, abig piece of your ERO involves
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1 communications?

2 MS. FARRELL:

3 A Yes

4 MS. O'BRIEN:

5 Q. Andsol specificaly -- I'll wait until they

6 get it up. Oh, Exhibit 138 is the PowerPoint
7 presentation. Soit'sslide 63. Thank you.
8 | think slide 63, if | understood the

9 presentation correctly, is your overal

18 A. Thisisthe protocol.

19 MS. O'BRIEN:

20 Q. It'sthisemergency --

21 MS. FARRELL:

22 A. It'sthisprotocol.

23 MS. O'BRIEN:

24 Q. Thisonethat's up on the screen.
25 MS. FARRELL:

Page 121

10 emergency response organization, how it works,
11 and you had two follow-up slides that address
12 very specific protocols. One was for a

13 helicopter return, | think, and one wasfor

14 medevac. So they’re very specific. So would
15 you have another protocol, say, that deals

16 with if ahelicopter ditches or crashes?

17 MS. FARRELL:

© 00 N O ok~ WODN P

T
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CERTIFICATE

We, the undersigned, do hereby certify that
the foregoing is atrue and correct transcript of a
hearing heard on the 21st day of January, 2010 at
Tara Place, 31 Peet Street, Suite 213, St. John's
Newfoundland and L abrador and was transcribed by us
tothe best of our ability by meansof a sound
apparatus.
Dated at St. John's, NL this
21st day of January, 2010
Cindy Sooley
Discoveries Unlimited Inc.
Judy Moss
Discoveries Unlimited Inc.

A. Wehavea formal notification process. Our

on call, would be paged, and | think Mr. VVokey
described --
(RECORDING STOPPED DUE TO POWER OUTAGE)
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ICC, or Incident Command Centre team leader is

Discoveries Unlimited Inc., Ph: (709)437-5028

Page 121 - Page 123




January 21, 2010

Multi-Page™

00090 - bodies

Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry

2nd [3 60:963:12,15

20[2) 5:24 27:23

20/201(6] 74:21,25 75:20
76:20 77:12 94:5

200213 120:5

20033 90:24 92:23
93:15

200815 12:5,13,24
13:17 14:12 17:12 21:9
28:25 30:332:3 35:6
43:23 44:7 53:6 63:12

2009[7 12:6 32:24 35:22
36:23 37:6 68:18 91:14

201013 1:1123:4,10
2112 1:182:5

21-day 3 81:2082:1,15
21212 2:243:6
2131y 1235

21st (4 58:11,24 123:4
123:10

221 57:3

233 87:15,21,23
23rd 2z 64:9,10
2551 82:21
25thy 65:21
27th(3 20:7,10 68:17
28[2 7:18 26:20
28thz 12:668:25
291 7:2

-0-
0009011 53:15 -3-
301 56:25
-1- 31y 123:5
1y 108:25 31st (5 12:2314:2316:1
103 4:16 9:6108:23 3‘;'14:7 s8:21
1001 34:13 [1] 83:25
115-1161 81:5 3rd [z 55:2256:3
12y 86:15 2
1201y 80:23 -
125y 82:12 442 88:19,19
125-130(7 81:2282:7 |4thiu 65:16
12th iy 7:1,16,19 20:11
20:17 21:4,6 63:6,7 65:9 -6-
120:1 . .
130 . 63[3 120:22 121:7,8
138[1] 22'116 6:00[1 53:24
(g ek 6th 2 66:9,9
13th [y 65:10 @ ’
1401 108:19 -7-
1514 27:23 62:24 82:16
82:22 Tthy 68:19
15th 1 66:4
173 80:1982:22 83:23 -8-
17th[y 68:18 8thy 16:1
19th [3 12:5,13 39:20
1By 52:5 -O-
9/10(4 10:1,4,12,21
-2-
2-3[y 87:23 -A-

ability (4 68:4,1170:14
123:7

able[s 7:2113:936:21
57:5101:6

above[z 54:17 112:15
absence[z 57:12 85:14
absolutey 74:5
absolutely [z 23:19
36:1

acceleration [y 86:16
accept [3 74:22 85:13
95:2

accountability (4 4:15
43:2103:15111:23

accountable[z 42:15
105:23

achieve[z 36:2157:14
acknowledged 1] 93:12
acronymiz 16:10 119:6

action[i3 35:7 40:13,21
41:9 43:18,18,21,24 44:7
58:13,16 59:1 63:25

actions[iy 13:1,19
17:10,10 40:19 41:1
43:20,21 44:12 58:21
117:16

activist [y 91:11
acts[y 68:15

actual [y 187
ady 77:4

add 5] 82:393:11,22
96:5 106:4

added [y 63:11

addingy 63:15

addition (s 10:21 16:8
30:4 31:24 56:16

additional (9 13:19
32:143:2159:35 60:14
65:22 84:23 85:6

address[ig 6:17 17:14
22:10 25:19 28:22 29:1
47:848:8,1171:172:5
78:293:14101:1,6
121:11

addressed 4] 6:18 43:17
52:592:19

addressingqy 79:13
adhere[y 105:6
administered y 14:7
advantage|y 118:7
advised [y 11:8

advisor [g 16:1143:22
63:25 68:15 69:17,17
afraid [y 24:19
afterwards(y 67:7
again[iz 24:2127:21
36:17 38:3 48:12 50:8
52:25 64:22 67:16 68:18
70:4 72:17 75:20 76:20
81:2494:4112:3

against 1 95:21
agendais 14:17 44:3
77:17
agreejz1) 6:22 10:20
16:2 17:7 18:24 22:6
23:231:17,20,22 40:19
43:7,10 49:24 59:18 71:9
74:12 81:14 94:17 98:23
99:5
agreed 2] 22:2323:10
agreeing 45:9
agreement 2 41:11,13
ahead 1 88:9
aircrafty 108:14
airworthinessy 89:2
allow [y 69:12
almost [z 17:2379:22
alwaysi4 6:752:3 77:17
82:20
amendment [y 109:5
amongst [ 10:3113:1
amount 11 93:22
analysisyy 36:4
annual [y 79:7
answer [12] 6:1316:3
31:12 34:8,9 58:5 74:12
75:19 84:7 91:3 107:2
120:15

answered [4 62:1894:3
106:1 112:2

answer s[4 55:14,15
56:20 103:9

anyone’ sy 29:17
anyway (1 15:13
apologiesyy 101:11
apologizes 34:11
95:11 96:12
apparatusyy 123:8
appear 2 68:1991:21
Appendix 1 108:24
applicabley 63:23
appliespy 113:14
apply 4 13:11105:16
105:16,18
appropriaters 17:21
32:6 36:21 74:12
appropriately g 27:5
27:834:16

April[ig 12:5,13 14:14
14:18 15:8,15 16:18
19:15,18 39:20

areajis) 3:234:22,245:1
5:19,19 6:10,22 80:7
85:22 95:1 97:20 106:13
111:3120:20

areasy4) 5:2528:352:8
76:8
arose[1 16:24

aspectsi4 4:17 100:22
102:10 117:13

aSSessS[3] 44:2157:19
92:7

assessed 11 7:25
assessment [2) 20:8 89:4
asset 3] 4:1485:1,4
assets[y 84:12
assigny 43:1
assigned [7) 42:7 43:2
associated [4 46:18
48:14 71:4 88:2
attached 21 60:9 77:25
attachment (21 109:5,6
attempt [y 10:23
attend [z 12:1767:5
attendanceqy 78:12
attended [y 94:11
attendsyy 16:12

attention s 14:18 15:15
18:996:1 99:10

attributes[y 67:15

audit (¢ 105:19 111:6
113:11 114:10,13 117:17

audited [y 105:13

audits[y 113:12117:6

August [g] 53:6 55:25
60:9 63:12,15 64:9,10
83:16

authoritiesi4 89:3
104:8 108:13 114:2
authorized[y 8:14
autory 85:14
automatically 1 63:5

availablers 7:411:18
64:18 79:4 83:21 92:4

average[y 82:15

aviation iy 48:1351:14
61:8,12 78:15 88:18,20
89:5107:11 111:19
113:17

avoid[y 83:23

awaitingi 63:8

awarejfe 15:8 66:21
102:17 115:7,9 119:17

away [2] 36:18 42:12

-B-
B2 109:5,6
background 4 3:22
5:2,4 63:16
backlogis 84:16,22
85:9

backlogged (3 83:4
84:9,24

backlogsiy 83:22
backup 1 86:1
Banksiz 64:14 85:3
bare[y 112:19
Barnesiz 90:2491:16
Barryqyg 91:12

based 2 76:3,3
basic(s 31:2532:276:8
basin[z 9:2021:17

basis[7 15:12 35:11
73:11,12 76:2 88:3 92:22

beacons(z 102:14 104:3
beat [y 52:23
became[y 15:8
become[y 3:24
began 1 51:6
behalf 21 2:24 86:8
behaviour (11 73:10
behavioural (7 71:8
belief (17 99:8
believes[y 3:4
below [y 27:13

best [12] 6:12,16 35:24
51:6 52:6 75:7,11 76:12
77:13 83:19 102:23 123:7

better (77 3:18 24:10,17
25:8 52:12 68:1 72:14

between (16 7:159:17
15:9 68:3 92:23 101:2
101:15 102:1,20 104:4,7
108:12,19 114:1 1155
116:24

beyond |2 54:17 85:14

bigiy 120:25

bit 6] 12:925:12 42:10
4555814 77:21

bits[z 18:2089:7

blame[y 29:13

Board[7 26:2327:3
75:11 77:8 78:13 79:25
113:12

boat [y 48:23
bodies[y 103:24

Discoveries Unlimited Inc., Ph: (709)437-5028

Index Page 1




January 21, 2010

Multi-Page™

body - dealt

Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry

body 6] 16:22 26:19,24
67:23 97:24 99:12

boots[y 18:3
bottomy 17:11
break [4 54:6,18 62:21
62:25

breakdown [ 29:15
Brett [y 12:17
BRIAN 71 2:1497:12
bridgesiy 3.4
brief [z 26:13,17
bringiy 7:1717:13
18:9 66:17 68:8 70:23
71:24 72:2 88:14 90:3
108:18

bringsy 20:10
broad (3 6:372:18 73:1
brought [5 7:19,22 72:1
76:18 77:7
BROWN 3 2:9

BST [ 32:959:21,22
73:4,17 76:11
BST-R [y 59:8
building[y 3:4
bulkiness[y 51:2
bulletins[z 89:1,5
bundle[z 12:3,7
business(s 15:24,24
52:3 85:22 120:6
butter [y 3:19
buttered[y 3:18

-C-

Ciy 76:16

C-NLOPB g 1:1253:5
66:21,25 77:3,21 78:2
78:2379:23

CADOR |y 89:6

Canadaji4 1:16 44:15
44:20 48:13 52:7 65:22
65:24 78:15 97:25 99:5
99:11 103:23 107:10
113:15

Canada’sq1 100:13

capacity 1 80:17

CAPP 4 1:1790:25
91:4 113:9

card[4 95:15118:18,19
119:10

cardsig 95:1,3,8117:25
118:25119:2,12,19

care[y 71:10

career [1 5:18

careersyy 5:13

Carryy 29:10

caselel 11:4 69:14 103:6
107:8 110:8,18

casesi 40:25

caused 1 38:16
centreqs 2:797:2122:2
CEP3 2:243:46
certainis 83:11,13

113:13

certainly s 3:15:17
11:22 52:10,12 67:7
68:23 76:2 78:25 80:3
88:13 94:17 99:8 103:3
106:9

CERTIFICATE 1
1231

certification 19 44:15
44:19,25 59:14 60:17
61:363:17,22 64:5 65:25
69:10 99:12 100:13,23
104:8 107:10 108:13
113:15114:2

certified 1y 28:7 29:24
46:13,16 48:12 49:5 61:7
61:8 63:10 99:5,11

certify[2 108:13 123:2
CGSB 3 25:1546:18
61:6

chafeqy 72:12
chainz 15:10,11
challengey 59:22
chancepy 90:13
chances|y 51:20
change|z 33:846:15

check [31 13:7 15:25
82:10

checked (21 47:2190:7
checksiy 8:9
choiceqy 69:12
choose[y 43:4
Christmasiy 89:19
Cindy [y 123:11

circumstancez 76:13
85:17

civil ;11 89:5
clarification  100:21
clarifies[y 14:10
clarify 2 34:12103:10
clarifyingy 8:2

clear (g 35:21 36:22 68:7

69:19 70:3,7 105:9
120:10

clearly s 15:2350:7
69:21

client [y 52:18

close[7 40:18,20 42:7
43:4 45:3,8 82:24
closed [71 40:13 42:20
42:21 43:6,18,20,21
closer [ 103:1
closes[y 42:20
closing(z 41:9 42:19

coast [4] 12:21 44:15,20
60:18

Collins[3 31:1132:14
56:19

Coallins [7 32:2234:21

comfort e 21:1439:1
45:25 67:17 70:25 74:2

comfortable(s 45:17
68:10 72:15 73:5,22

coming7 15:519:20
19:24 22:11 28:24 38:23
79:21

command [z 5:14 122:2

comment (4] 38:21
50:1554:1 81:16

comments(y 98:3

commercial [z 33:9
120:16

Commissioner [26] 1:2
1:10,11,15,20,25 2:3,4
2:114:7 11:13,16 12:2
33:554:7,16 55:2,3,11
62:23 63:1 96:23 97:3,6
97:7,11

commit [y 93:22

commitment (3 51:8
90:1,17

committed (21 90:15
94:1

committeesq 11:7,10
12:413:22 18:15,17
19:10 21:1 40:18 41:11
41:13 42:4 43:23 44:1
45:5 55:24 58:24 59:4,6
60:9 63:9,19,23 64:17
65:2 69:2,4,10 79:18
89:2391:6,7,9,19 93:19
93:21 94:10,18 95:6
120:5

committees(ie 18:13
64:25 67:1 79:9 89:15
94:20 114:21 115:4,12
116:7,15,22,25 117:10
117:15,16

common 2 6:2513:20
commonalities[y 4:25
communicatey 43:22

communicated [2
13:24 17:12

communication (g
18:13 22:17 31:23 53:10
78:22 79:20 90:1 115:5
116:24

communication/education
[1 75:23

communications|z
31:14121:1

community [ 116:9
companiesyy 92:7
company 4 4:11
103:23 105:17,23
company’s[1 105:22
comparisonsii 94:14
compiled 1 14:7
complained 1 49:9
complainingiy 74:2
completelyy 25:13
completing[1 57:2
completion (1 51:5
complexity 2 77:8
78:13
compliance(s) 44:22
72:14102:10 105:21
111:21

comply [z 111:4,20
compressed 1] 92:16
compromisei 235
compromises(i 71:16
computer 1 53:23
conceivably 1 85:7

concerniis 22:2,3
28:25 39:8,23 40:1 57:22
59:20 79:12 101:16 102:7
102:13,20 104:2 114:12

concerned [g] 39:368:9
68:10 98:20 100:2,5,21
104:23

concernsiz 7:18,20,22
13:6 19:22 20:21 37:21

concluders 15:237:22
39:24

conclusion [z 36:7,9
conclusionsiy 36:5
conditions(3 85:24
86:1,5

confidencey 51:14
confirmed [y 64:11

consider (7] 88:689:7
08:8 101:15 104:4 111:15
120:7

consider ablejs 20:17
30:9 46:17 78:12

considered [y 40:14
consistent [3] 21:8,16
58:8

constant (1 95:25
contained [y 109:4
content 2] 18:7 69:25

continue[ 13:7 45:4
60:25 75:16,16 77:14
93:5,23 95:21 96:3

continues(z 44:5,23

continuing4 13:6,11
13:18 78:19

continuousig 5:19
50:21,25 52:1 74:6 92:22
93:1,6 120:17

continuumiy 71:13

contract 121 30:14,15
31:13,21 33:6,8 105:4
108:19 109:7,24 110:2
1125

contractor [3 104:20
106:12 120:11

contractor’syy 106:24

contractor s[i 4:8
9:17 81:11 97:20 98:10
08:12 105:18 111:6,11
115:18

control [z 105:10 111;7

copies|z 11:14 15:17

Copy [1 53:4

core[z 4:10,10

correct (34 10:18 11:17
24:3 25:6 40:10 56:14
58:2 64:7,20 65:14,17
65:19 66:2,5,7 69:23
80:15 83:6 98:2 102:3

104:13,17 105:15 107:18
107:25 108:2,15 110:16
112:24 114:23 115:14,19
118:23123:3

correctly 2 118:4 121:9

Cougar reg] 2:112:17
12:2213:3,7 14:2,6
30:16,19 32:18 357,12
64:11 82:10 85:20,23
97:19 99:14 100:16,21
101:2,16 102:1,20,25
103:4,23 104:4,5,7 105:9
105:16 107:5,8,11 108:6
108:12,20 109:12,13,21
109:25 110:3,4,13,24,25
111:20 112:5,5,12,15,21
113:16,18,19 114:2,17
114:22 115:2,4 117:8
119:2,13,15 120:13,14
120:17

Cougar’s[y 102:3
counsel (g 1:12,17,21
2:1,6 97:4,8 109:7
couple[z 30:1395:8
course[z 73:1997:17
cover 11 89:23
covered [z 43:19 103:22
coveringy 72:12
coversiy 107:24
cracksiy 90:4

crash (3 16:2017:4
27:18

crashes[y 121:16
createry 84:22

Crewie 97:17 99:21
103:21 108:25 109:2
110:1

criteriafe 41:3,942:19
85:24 86:5,9

critical 7 51:9
CROSBIE [y 1:13
crucial [y 20:11
cumber somejy 45:16
current (s 6:444:571:6
custom 4] 44:958:17
59:3,8

cut [z 86:12,17
cyclery 13:12,15

-D-
DACON |y 87:1
daily 1 88:4
danger ousyy 82:21

daters 20:1158:21
110:9

Dated (11 123:9

daysi(s) 81:1382:1483:8
83:2584:15

deal (77 30:443:9

dealing4 15:22 41:7
77:983:22

deals[z 25:16 121:15
dealt [3 40:14 119:13,15

Discoveries Unlimited Inc., Ph: (709)437-5028

Index Page 2




January 21, 2010 Multi-Page™ debate - fact
- Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquir
debateq 91:1 d!smplme[l] 3:24 69:19,25 70:2,5,10,12 120:22 121:10,20 7:297:13 LY
deceased (1] 97:16 discomfort (s 71:10,15 | 70:19 empirical 1 %6:6 ampl
December (g 17:11 71:2172:17 737 E452 2 50: o o1 00 01316
[2] 50:20,25 emploved : 89:19 90:3 93:
18:12,17 28:24 66:9 di : - ARy 1511025 1142416
18121728 9 iscoveredy 37:17 Earlezo 2:13,15,16 employee(s 5.7 74: 95:15110:25 114:4,16
1670. Discoveriesp 12312 | 22242061478.1281 | oag sinssioone | 11619 ’
decidez 110:13,24 12314 8:19,259:8,13,24 10:9 95:6 114:22 120110 examplesiz 948,12
decided 3 54:161:12  |discuss(y 13:1777:4,6 | 10141911:520,25 emploveesu 898 g I? 1 80
o117 Ciocusst 1377 7740 | 132514919151.16  |employeesig 48104 xeeption o 80:19
decision (e 90:2591:4 | 66:2079:7 gs(]i'23.1175')g&.31 o tor910a611s 7311 7411 78.25 0 oxclusively
g 25 o disi:ussi' 23 117: 18:19.23 19:2,6,12,17 73:1174:1178:2388:13 |exclusively i 113:5
i : on [z 68:21 19:23 20:9,15,22 21:20 90:991:1892:13 106:18 | excuse :18 62:
ecisions(y 113:4 114:22 22:4,19237,11,20,25 115:13,17 iy
geck (2] 53:473:18 discussions(y 99:13 24:48,14,202425721  |employersiy 35 Sxeuter 106379
ecker (g 26:17,23 27:4 |disembarki 26:8,15,2527:6,16 28:1 1898 | yrr B6AB5001L
Decker’s(y 16:22 103:17 kingr 26:1129:2,6,11 30:6,24 iggumnﬁﬁﬁd [11889.8 M oatetpe
dicaten s sroer |dsegardy | BRZIREEE |ocoragen i | Mednisie
34:15 59:24 disregarded [y 2220 | 35:1336:2,8,25 37: ° ong sty 2
} ' : 11336:282537:14  |encouragingy 96:3 | existspy 3:7
eeper (1] 17:2 distanceqy 27:13 37:2438:1439:6,1L,17  lend 4 7:18:2341:1 exiti 59:
defect (1) 89:6 digtinct 1) 5:25 P Y LY S ei:ogn%[é]dsg'g
defecti o |dsnet _ 1:2242:19,1843:8,14 ' nded p °8:13
defiegitéxgi[é]s 47??) ;8'1 g!stlr_lgmshm 68:3 446 45:12.21 46:2.6.22 ended [z 36:20 70:24 expect (g 13:1395:8,13
i [y 105:15 |distributedz 11:19 47:12 48:19 49:6,23 engagers 78:1993:56 | 105:13,14111:11,20
definery 10:23 ditchesiy 121:16 50:11,16 51:17 52:14 93:8 120:14 114:5.7 |
geﬂ Peléi[l] ;;;;g g!t(?h_'”g (1] 85:16 gg%ggggﬁ ?%,313 engaged [z 38:1793:20 |expectationy 113:12
3 : : . - . L ] ) : i N
gy w0y (iSO 67 | BBtz |DegEmens 114 |epectaonsy 197
e divisions(y 78:16 61101621 6241115 | aasaosos oo o> |expectedy 78:20
(1 109:1 doesn’tg 4:116:720:3 | 62:1963:2364:821 At e experience(is) 5:22 6:4
demonstratesyy 91:8 | 21:322:2539:2168:19 | 65:8152066:38,19 engagingy 22:15 6:9 50:22 108:5,8 109:3
department 2] 419 7212 83:2 67:9,13,20 68:13,24 70:8 engine[y 106:14 109:11,15110:1,13,22
a4 don (4 13:935:8 68:11 70:15,20 71:3,19 72:4 enhancementsy 89:20| 112:7,18114:8
departureq 1310 o4 ;éiggggg 74719 |ensureq 1381815 | eXpertisery 114:8
depth(z 26:1327:22  |donern 9:335:2355:18 | 7g:21 P14 80:6.16 301934153516 36:16 | explainy 2218
described (4 43:1644:8 | 551958:1575229221 | 80:2281:16,19,25 82:13 37:1238:639:14 8421 Jexplicit (w 19:3
53:16 12214 donned g 332 82:10,25 83:7,12,18 84:3 | ENtertain y 452 exploreqy 112:12
descriptiony 58:12  |donning(y 33:2 85:1286:3,1887:2,8,14 |entire(s 9:710:156:13 ' ;
p 01 , exploringpy 28:13
designy 55:18 doublery 84:18 ggzig,g gg&%g gog:i entry (g 44125820 | exposurery 717
| _ . . 112, : :294:2 i . '
designationsiy 517 doubt [y 3:17 94:13,25 95:17 96:14,24 e?éf'zr&r.‘{'ge”.t 8 16:11 | exposure-based 1y
designed (10 14:6 25:18 |dOWN [5] 8:626:2047:9 | 96:25 TR VR 914
26:3,6,1227:21,2428:6 | 103:18106:5 : i tr '
26:36.12 draf _ ear_lym 49:14 equipment (g 98:21 extant (1 15:4
raft 1 70:1 . extend :788:
GO draftw ro - easing(y 13:15 99:4 100:1,24 104:22 (2 76:788:6
detail iy 10914 dra yu 9%: east [z 12:21 60:18 105:1,11 106:10,17 extent (e] 49:1157:16
determ[illqe .12 dr! m 17:2 easy (2 51:9 74:1 ERO[1 120:25 95:3102:7 103:5 117:12
dterminers 1218 - |dr (I)Q-Is Ng(3 105:17 106:6 | echory 5:14 ES& SR s 43226325 |CXIray 83:24.25
e, o st 142022 educational (g 112:19 | 6%417.17 extremely [y 92:18
developed 7810 | dual 7 29:24 46:12 617 effect [y 57:17 eggegnallwa Sl bl R
dictatery 110:14 6113256214644 |CeCliVera 7LIB736 | ogaplished  41:38 Yo
difference 4s:557:7 |duck 3:19 efforti 30593415 \eqatesy o7 F
57:2192:2398:6,8107:5 |due(g 11:1212:1617:21 SZ:E;)“ 46185021521 | & aluater 73:10 "y
differ emcesry 6722 37715 34,16 105119 : e 73 facerz 9:1211:12 12:15
different i 13:236:9 | 122° effortsiy 30:3 eval uation(z 9:277:11 | 21:1226:2,3,9 39:2,24
37:3451047:23 7816 |dunking(y 73:18 gresSiy 59:18 evaluationspy 9221 | 40 e s
971924107:12 11624 | duringpa 12245111 | EH& S 6814 eventy 567 Sanoy oo
difficult (i 57:14 50:8,10 60:19 80:2581:2 | EHS[2) 16:10,10 everybody s 1113 | g5l 1y 4715
difficulty s 87572 | B2586:1417922008 |eightry 57:6 (il facilitiess o
ity 37572 | Gt ot oo oty sz | LS 0208
'Y . . 1 . . . ) . . . . . .
d|||_gence[§1 172037:12 | i oo e|th¢r [5] 5:449:18 1031 | 79:4 80:9 90:24 91:17 facility[e] 103:13,14,19
38.4.19 10519 yingy 25:2 105:3118:18 avol ) 113:8115:18 118:6
direct 1 73:24 el_ementS[z] 28:598:21 exac\t/e[l]e,-sl? = an- facing .116-2 '
direction 4 81:2282:6 E- elicity 21:4 50 ST g 236
- : ICl 106:5 act (3] 5:236:2,21,24
82:7 906 ery 18:13 eicited 1y 21:5 exactly g 27:1728:21 | 2211 18:1219:16,20
dir ectivesty 89:2 E-452(3 9312040  |eliminated y 95:18 28:22 48:15 50:12,12 219,15 25:16 29:16
g!rectly[z] 117:2120:13 |e-mail (17 18:5,7,12,24 |€lsewhereqy 58:15 53:23 72:25 5010 24 514 6.13 5214
isa . 19:15,18,21 20:1,1 69: : inati : 225717 60:24 64"
greep 57:1,1,44 2120:1,169:14 |emergency (4 5:14 examinations 2:15 56:24 57:17 60:24 64:23
Index Page 3

Discoveries Unlimited Inc., Ph: (709)437-5028




January 21, 2010

Multi-Page™

factor - Husky

Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry

68:9 74:22 76:16 79:9

factor [ 95:19

failurer4 30:1431:14
31:20,23

fair (7 4:2310:262:3
76:5 77:7 81:20 107:8

fairlyz 10:2341:5

fall (27 79:17,21

falsey 31

familiar 4 4:256:5
23:2199:1

families|z 97:4,16

Farrell (203 2:14,204:4
5:20,21 6:20 7:6,10,14
8:16,21 9:4,10,16 10:5
10:11,17 11:3,23 13:23
14:5,16,24 15:7,19 16:5
16:14,17 17:6,17,25
18:11,21,25 19:4,9,14
19:19,25 20:4,13,19 21:7
21:24 22:8 23:3,9,15,23
24:2,6,12,18,22 25:5,10
26:21 27:2 28:9,18 29:4
29:9,20 30:22 31:1,5,19
32:10,21 33:22 34:1,17
35:1,5,18 36:6,11 37:9
37:18 38:2,15,18,23
39:13,22 40:5,9,16,24
41:10,15,20,24 42:6,16
42:22 43:11 44:4 45.7
45:19,23 46:4,9,23 47:3
48:6 49:2,8 50:1 52:24
54:9,14,22 55:7,17,23
56:9,14,15,21 57:10,25
58:6 59:19 60:7 61:4,14
61:18,24 62:6,9,13 64:6
64:19 65:5,13,18 66:1,6
66:14 67:3,11,18,24
68:22 69:24 70:11,18,22
71:4,12,22 72:16,21 73:2
73:9,15 74:16 75:6 76:6
77:12,23 78:24 79:6,24
88:2389:11 90:10,14
93:10 94:7,15 96:16,17
97:12 98:11 100:14 101:5
101:20 102:9,22 105:12
106:5 107:19 108:1 111:2
111:17 112:23 113:7
114:3,24 115:6 116:8,13
117:11,21 119:22 120:3
120:24 121:2,17,21,25

Farrell'sz 4:185:1
fast 2 55:6,8
faster (3 52:9
favourablery 86:2

features(s 11:1312:16
47:15

February 4 12:6 19:11
68:19,25

feedback (27 73:25 94:23
feet [y 80:3

fell (17 93:16

fellowy 95:7
fellows|y 52:16

felt (4 17:2036:14,23
58:24

field g 717 97:2

figurers 6:128:89:14
fill [y 118:18

final (11 68:25
financial [y 33:9
finery 82:14
finished [y 1.4
firery 80:4

first 1y 31:735:24
47:13 49:24 50:3 56:19

79:22 97:20 109:17 120:4
120:4

fishingy 83:19

fit (43 3:117:2,3,219:12
10:7,2311:1 18:8 21:23
22:1,7 26:24 28:15 30:17
30:20 31:17 32:17,19,23
33:11 35:16,21 36:10
37:17,20 38:17 44:1,9
45:15,18 48:22,23,25
51:22 58:17 59:11,16,24
63:21 67:22 68:3 75:5

fits[4 3:108:11 10:16
47:22

fitted (3 8:1510:22 38:6

fittings) 8:18,2327:9
51:19,25

fivery 82:14

flagged 1 37:21

fleshy 97:21

flexibility [ 13:12

flight 15 8:17,23 36:13
37:20 44:13 45:2 77:6
81:9 84:17 97:17 98:22
99:21 101:13,14 102:12

flights[i2] 80:10 82:14
82:16 83:9 84:11,14,15
84:18,24 85:8,10,14

flow[2 90:9 119:12

fly s 9:1146:13 75:4
82:5108:14

flyingpig) 10:2517:22
21:22 28:1529:17 36:18
37:6,13 48:24 50:23
83:24 85:24 86:6,6,10
86:13 87:4 88:7 90:8

focusig 5:18 30:2 57:12
57:18 58:1,7 100:16
116:14

fogi4 83:8,14,17,17
folksry 50:13

follow g 15:20,25 44:11
44:12 58:19 63:25 78:20
113:9117:15

follow-up 4 13:16
18:1599:9 121:11

followed [ 51:5

following(z 78:9
117:13

foregoing(1 123:3
forget (1 29:14
forgotten iy 28:4

formal [4 3:255:11 36:4
122:1

forthy 83:2

forward [2g 7:18,19,22
12:1817:13 19:20,24
20:3,14 21:16 28:24
38:2351:4 66:17 68:8
69:16,18 70:24 71:1,24
72:1,2 88:1491:9,12
92:21 93:15,25

forwarded [3 67:16
69:2,6

found 2 8:14 113:19

four [4 60:12 73:22
84:15 87:12

FPSO (s 64:1384:13
86:9,21 93:20 98:7
107:17 116:10

frankly (s 50:6 75:14
76:10

FRCsjy 86:25

frequency 2] 96:8,9

Fridayy 80:11

frustrated [y 69:7

full (4 9:2012:1281:14
103:14

fully 4 35:836:16 93:9
93:20

functiony 39:4

-G-

gamejy 29:13
gapy 114:12
GARY [z 2:1497:12
gas[y 92:16

gather [1) 83:13
gear [1 71:21
gearbox 1 90:5
general 3] 72:589:15
89:24

generallyz 73:14
89:23

gentleman 1 91:11

gentlemen 2 1:396:15

givenie 6:2317:22
36:17 41:7 64:22 106:11

givingy 325

glady 37:1

glasses|i 48:1

Glomar [2 64:14 85:3

gloves[y 106:17

go-forward 1 76:2

QOeS[4] 22:24 46:19
60:20 120:13

goners) 16:9 66:24 94:15

good [14] 1:3,142:17,19
2:217:58:311:154:6
71:7 83:19 93:12 114:16
116:19

Goodrich 3 64:14
84:13 85:3

Government [y 2:8
Grand [z 64:14 85:3

great [n 74:2384:19
93:24 94:8,12 95:15
117:19

greater [y 69:12
ground 1 13:20
group (4 5:24 6:364:23
82:2

guarantee(y 27:17
Guard [z 44:15,20

guess[3] 3:2157:13
111:18

guidelines[y 113:11

-H-

hair [y 72:9

half 4 49:17 86:13,15
86:17

hall [y 16:20

hand 71 51:10 108:24

handingy 112:8

handover [ 885

Hansen (421 2:57:24
12:17,23 13:10,14 14:3
14:6,7 15:11 30:14,18
31:6,7,21,23 32:12,14
32:2533:10,23 35:19
36:12,22 37:5,21 38:3
39:3 44:8,17,19,24 46:10
53:3,15,17,19 55:18,19
56:1,4 58:16

Hansen's[y 35:16

happening1 48:2

hard 4 29:21,25 72:10
72:10

harm g 95:1,3,15
117:25 118:24 119:19

Harris[y 2:12

hat [y 72:10

hazard 5 29:22 40:10
88:12 118:11 120:8

hazardous[y 87:25

hazardsis 88:2,3,6
96:6,11

head [3 29:1359:10
82:20

headed (11 81:10

heads[y 26:6

health 277 11:7,10 13:21
15:6 16:11,12 19:8 20:25
23:1842:364:2567:1
78:579:18 91:7,19,22
94:17 95:5 114:20 115:3
115:11 116:7,15,21,25
117:10

hear 2 22:11 31:11

heard (10 6:2526:16
30:931:11 32:14 76:3
92:4109:17 118:9 123:4

hearing(7 8:756:13
80:188:1594:4 112:13
123:4

heave[y 86:16

HEEBO 2 119:55

heightened 3 38:22
39:7 120:1

held 4 12:2313:17
14:15,22

helicopter (27 3:106:19
10:15 25:12 26:10 27:18
51:1559:9 61:23 62:7
80:17 83:21 84:23 85:6
88:7 89:9,17 90:7 105:4
106:7 109:4 111:15 112:9
113:14 119:20 121:13,16

helicopters(n 12:22
26:13 42:13 80:9 84:10
103:18 120:12

helideck [ 103:20

heliport (6] 32:2533:11
34:2 35:20 36:13 38:12

Helly 43 2:57:24 12:16
12:2213:10,14 14:3,6,7
15:11 30:14,17 31:6,7
31:21,23 32:12,14,25
33:10,23 35:16,19 36:12
36:22 37:5,20 38:3 39:3
44:8,16,19,24 46:10 53:3
53:15,17,19 55:18,19,25
56:4 58:16

helmets[y 104:15

help 2 89:12120:23

helpful 1 32:4

Henry 3 64:1484:13
85:3

hereby 2 109:1 123:2

HHE452 (1 64:15

Hiberniaz 64:12,15

Hibernia'siz 84:13
85:2

high g 22:17

higher 5] 5:638:16
82:11,12 96:9

hindsight [ 51:9 74:21
75:1,2176:20 77:12 94:5

historically i 93:7
hit (3 34:1397:2103:20
hitch 4 81:1482:1,22
95:9

HMDC 4 1:212:25
16:21 37:3

hocy 77:4

hold 2 5:16 62:5
holding1 80:3
holds[y 100:22
homejy 53:23
honest 27 38:793:21
honour 11 74:8

hood [y 13:10
hopery 75:14
HOTF [y 113:20
hour sy 90:7

hover [y 85:14

HTS 11y 94:10
HUEBA (7 90:2391:14
91:19,24 93:12,24 104:11
HUET [y 73:18
hugery 93:22
humany 71:4
hundreds|z 77:16,16
Husky 2 1:2164:12

Discoveries Unlimited Inc., Ph: (709)437-5028

Index Page 4




January 21, 2010

Multi-Page™

hybrid - Maximum

Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry

hybrid 1 92:15
hypothermiapy 25:3

ICCy 122:2
identificationy 29:22
identified (4 30:896:7
104:20 113:20
identify 2 19:21 70:7
Il [y 108:24

impact [3 23:18 27:14
46:20

impacted 2] 49:11 68:4
impactingi 47:6
impede[y 39:1
impetusi4 16:23 37:25
38:16 39:7
implementation (4
91:2,5,1592:4
implicationsi1 47:10
important 5] 25:19
46:23 74:10 77:18 100:6
impression 3 3:2,14
37:3

improper [z 11:12
12:15

improvers 52:475:17
76:14 96:1

improvement 10 5:19
50:21,2551:3,13 52:1
74:6 92:22 93:1,6

inbound 11 13:4
Incpy 123:12,14
inchy 49:18
Incident [y 122:2
incidents(s 96:8,10
119:21

included [z 63:14
117:17

including(z 39:3
117:14

inconsistent [y 58:14
increase[y 13:12
increased 1 87:5
increases|z 13:13,16
indeed [y 91:6
indicatez 5:12 84:16
indicated (14 4:139:5
11:6 27:4 38:24 39:23

A7:7 64:1 76:22 77:2,12
84:8 89:14 93:17

indicates[y 110:2

indication [6) 49:451:7
66:11,24 68:21 99:15

individual (25 4:12
11:12 12:16 20:14 21:22
22:1,523:8,18 28:8
31:14,15 33:21 42:25
43:2,3,545:2 47:2,21
49:9 51:4 59:20 67:23
92:7

individual’s[z 26:6
59:10

individuals[23 5:246:3
7:3,24 19:20,24 20:7
21:10,13 30:19 32:16,19
33:138:2343:25 44:10
58:18 59:7,13 65:3 66:17
69:15 73:22

industry g 50:2252:9
93:7

information 17 16:9
16:15,16,22 51:10 59:3
50:5 65:23 89:7 90:9
109:22 110:10

informativey 75:25
informed [3) 44:22 69:3
69:4

iNgress(7 23:4,17 25:14
25:17 26:18 94:8,9
initial (27 20:126:4
initiate[z 41:1842:5
initiativery 93:1
input (1 55:15
Inquiryy 75:15
insideqy 72:11
installation (3 81:17
98:15 105:5

instance[s 92:14 106:6
106:13

instead [2] 60:2 83:25
Instituters 59:25 60:3
114:6,7,10,19
instruct (3 30:18 31:7
331

instructed 2] 4:931:24
instruction e 5:13
31:16 32:1,5 76:10,12

instructor sie] 32:2,4
114:6,8,11,14

insulation [y 25:18
intact [y 49:19
integrity i 77:10
intendy 3:19
intended (271 69:19 73:1

intent (3 98:16 107:20
107:22

interaction 4 17:3
77:2191:22 117:3

interested (3] 52:4 88:15
106:9

interesting[1y 79:15
interestingly (1 57:6
interests(y 116:10
internal [y 96:5
internally 1 119:13
interpret [y 67:12
interrupt i 34:11
interruptedy 34:8
interruption iy 83:3
introduced [y 35:21

introduction 27 50:20
50:24

investigate[z 20:21
22:3
investigating s 22:15

47:557:15
investigationsyy 17:10
involvery 91:18
involved [y 104:9
involvement [g 79:2
79:20 91:14 94:6 103:8
104:1
involves[y 120:25
isolate[y 74:1
issue[s7 6:1911:11
12:15 14:10 15:3 17:4
17:19 21:19 22:21 28:13
28:25 30:10 34:18 35:6
36:14,24 37:23 38:25
39:1,142:14 43:17 45:14
45:25 48:5 49:4,11,12
49:16,22 57:9,23 59:16
63:19,21 65:24 66:10,24
71:11 75:376:18 77:8
77:1478:19 79:2,21 85:3
85:13 86:21 91:9 99:16
101:13,15 104:4 112:10
117:4 120:11
issued [ 70:2
issues(so 7:18,20 12:24
13:6 17:10,13 19:21
20:21 22:10,13 28:12
29:23 30:7 48:9,9,11
50:6,10 51:3 60:21 63:17
66:18,22,23 67:17 68:3
68:7,8,11 69:1,11,20
70:24,25 71:8,8,24 72:3
75:8 77:5,6 80:4 85:23
87:488:14 91:20 92:19
95:2 103:8 120:18

issues/concernsiy
13:18

itemsi4 15:20 41:21
88:17,21
itself (31 3:24 76:19 103:7

-J-

Jy 2:15

January 4 1:168:17
123:4,10

job1e 35:16,17 56:16
63:4 101:15 116:2

John’s[z 123:5,9

joint (7 9:512:21 14:22
35:9 76:18 84:8 92:2

Judy 1 123:13

July 7 53:655:2556:3
63:6,7 77:24 79:16

June[g 7:2313:17 16:1
55:22 56:2 58:11,24
60:15

June/July 1 56:7

jurisdiction[z 111:22
111:25

K-

Katerz 97:13,15

keeps) 25:13 26:3,6
44:22 54:25

key 1 49:14

kind (4 20:12 35:24
76:10 97:21

knew 2 69:473:19
knock 1 57:17
knowing1 53:12

knowledge[4 73:13
78:22109:18 117:2

known [y 109:13

-L-

labour 3 71:5

L abrador 3 123:6
lack [y 87:9
ladies(y 1:3
lady 1] 54:12
LAENGLE g 2:9
land (17 103:14
landingy 57:3
largers) 21:1237:774:3
larger [1] 37:16
last (41 1:7 84:8 92:25
120:20

latter (11 28:13
lawyer [1] 74:23
lay (1] 106:15

lead (21 69:395:7
leader (1 122:2
leaders[y 4:12
leading 1) 57:24
leads(y 67:16
leaksiy 25:9
learn 3 75:16 93:18,25

learned 9 3:1228:16
35:2552:11,16 75:8,12
75:1376:4

least (4 11:17 39:20 47:2
73:22

|leave[s 102:1108:4
110:11,21 112:13,21
113:3114:19

|eft (3 3:14 102:3 108:23

length 1y 23:12

less(y 26:14

lessonsiz 3:1252:11

letting[y 75:4

level 131 5:7 22:17 36:9
38:17 53:9 72:7,25 88:1
94:6 110:22 112:6,10
114:7

liaison [y 120:17
licencery 112:17
license[y 80:3
licensed [ 112:8
liferiz 23:1,826:598:23
99:10 100:3,6,10,11,18
102:5,8

lightly 1y 3:21
likely s 10:2,373:10
linkage[1 49:25
linked (21 49:17,21
list (6] 1:69:11,19,20,23

69:18
listen [z 51:18 71:25
listeningy 96:2
literally 2 8:925:2
Local 21 2:243:6
locator [21 102:14 104:3
logistics[i 120:16
longer (2 46:16 60:17
ook 14 18:1,4 20:23
47:20 52:11 55:14,15
56:25 85:5 94:22 112:19
114:10 117:12,20

looked [3 41:4 107:15
107:16

lookingi1) 45:2452:3
61:6 74:20 94:22 96:13
109:23 112:17 114:20
116:9 117:9

looksy 99:12

lost [y 61:2

lots[3) 45:16 51:21,24
lower (11 96:9
lunch(y 84:4
luxury (2] 74:25 75:20

-M-
MACDONALD y
1:23

Mahoney 2 1:6,9
mail (1] 18:14
maintain 2] 30:169:18
maintained 1 53:9
maintainingz 44:25
46:12

Major [2] 16:24 22:23
majority 2 51:174:13
managei2 84:19 85:22

management [e] 4:9
72:6 79:8 95:4 105:23
117:14

manager [s] 4:145:7,23
73:981:17

manager s 4:1

managings 9:19,20
106:12

mandate[y 96:10

mandated [y 89:2

March s 7:16 12:23
14:12,15,17,22 16:1
19:11 20:7,10,12,18 21:4
21:6 119:25

marine[iy 2:648:13
59:25 60:2 61:8,11 78:15
114:6,7,10,19

MARTIN [y 975

material (7 13:1345:17

materialsiz 41:45

math [y 82:20

matter (3 29:16 56:24
79:16

Maximum 2 80:25
812

Discoveries Unlimited Inc., Ph: (709)437-5028

Index Page 5




January 21, 2010

Multi-Page™

may - or ganization

Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry

may[15 5:16 7:23 11:4
12:19 32:24 36:23 37:5
43:15,25 44:7 57:8 58:21
83:16 87:25113:16

mean i1 3:23 34:11
40:14 42:2 52:17 73:25
83:24 86:20 87:4 111:14
115:24

meansis 45:1165:11
123:7

meant 3] 27:23 34:12
91:2

measured [y 38:7

mechanicy 106:13

medevac(y 121:14

medical [y 92:8

meet [10] 44:14 60:16
61:19,25 62:7 78:4 100:7
100:22 102:8 113:13

meeting[s1 12:14,21
12:24 13:17 14:14,15,22
15:6 16:2 18:18 28:20
40:19,21 43:23 44:18
55:25 56:3 60:15 64:9
65:1,2,22 66:25 70:5,13
76:18 78:379:8,17 93:16
100:17

meetingsis) 12:515:9
16:13,21 19:10 67:5
68:16 77:3,4,5 78:10
89:16,24,25 117:15

meets(y 100:12

member [e] 42:363:8
63:19,23 64:17 69:3

member s[g 2:24 3:6
35:10 40:17 59:4,6 78:12
95:5,6

Memorial [y 2:6

mentioned [z 5:23
97:23

merit [y 94:5

met (3 56:1 61:22 85:25

metrepz 86:15,16

metres[4 27:2387:11
87:12,13

Ml [y 32:2

MICHELE 2 2:14
97:12

middle[z 53:5,6

might (g 9:18 29:23 33:9
54:6 57:23 81:12,13
83:24 85:7

mike[y 63:5

mind [y 48:3

minutes 14:21 26:14
29:14 58:11 68:25

minutes(zn 11:912:34
15:14,18 18:4 19:25 20:6
21:11 22:6,14,21 23:14
24:1 25:4 28:20 39:19
43:16 53:1 60:10 62:24
63:6,14 67:6 68:1,23
69:8 70:4 76:17 77:15
77:25 89:24 91:8 93:16
94:16 117:20 120:5

misconception (1

25:12

MisS[4] 29:18 52:18,20
52:22

misunder stood 2] 8:3
8.5

mitigates 85:7,9,11
mitigation [1 89:4
mability 1 68:4
models[y 6:6
modification [y 48:11
modificationsz 12:18
44:1,17 45:3 59:14 60:13
60:24

modified 3 65:2567:15
68:20

modify (5 30:1 44:24
46:11,15 62:20
modifyingz 46:21
47:11

module[y 42:12

moment [3] 29:15 42:13
115:23

Monday 1] 80:10

monitor [3] 101:22,25
111:21

monitored [y 94:11
monitoring i 89:6
month 2z 83:17,20
months|z 17:23 36:18

morning7 1:3,14 2:17
2:19,21 53:24 109:17

Moss[1 123:13

most [51 61:565:7 76:13
84:20 120:12

motion [z 86:11,12
mounting[i 90:4
mouses 54:12 55:6,8

movejs) 49:17 58:3 82:2
85:593:25

moved [2] 5:6 45:3

movement [ 86:21

movements|y 86:12

moving(4) 45:8 71:6
81:21 83:1

M S[2e5 1:132:9,14,20
4:4,185:1,20,21 6:20 7:6
7:10,14 8:16,21 9:4,10
9:16 10:5,11,17 11:3,23
13:23 14:5,16,24 15:7
15:19 16:5,14,17 17:6
17:17,25 18:11,21,25
19:4,9,14,19,25 20:4,13
20:19 21:7,24 22:8 23:3
23:9,15,23 24:2,6,12,18
24:22 25:5,10 26:21 27:2
28:9,18 29:4,9,20 30:22
31:1,5,19 32:10,21 33:22
34:1,17 35:1,5,18 36:6
36:11 37:9,18 38:2,15
38:18,23 39:13,22 40:5
40:9,16,24 41:10,15,20
41:24 42:6,16,22 43:11
44:4 45:7,19,23 46:4,9
46:23 47:3 48:6 49:2,8
50:1 52:24 54:9,14,22

55:7,17,23 56:9,13,15
56:21 57:10,25 58:6
59:19 60:7 61:4,14,18
61:24 62:5,9,13 64:6,19
65:5,13,18 66:1,6,14
67:3,11,18,24 68:22
69:24 70:11,18,22 71:4
71:12,22 72:16,21 73:2
73:9,15 74:16 75:6 76:6
77:11,23 78:24 79:6,24
88:23 89:11 90:10,14
93:4,10 94:7,14 96:15
96:17 97:10,12,13,14
98:4,11,17 99:2,18,24
100:8,14 101:3,7,12,20
101:23 102:4,9,11,18,22
103:2,25 104:10,14,18
105:8,12,25 106:5,20,25
107:13,19,23 108:1,3,9
108:16 109:19 110:7,17
111:2,13,17 112:1,23,25
113:7,23114:3,15,24
115:1,6,10,20 116:8,11
116:13,16,23 117:5,11
117:18,21,23 118:8,16
119:1,7,11,16,22,24
120:3,19,24 121:2,4,17
121:19,21,23,25
multiplez 9:18 47:5
multiply 1 87:3
multitudery 6:2
must (2] 35:14 62:20

Mustangiy 50:23
51:20,24 60:16 61:2,5
61:19,22 62:6 63:18
69:13

-N-

namejz 69:591:12

namesie) 20:7 67:16
69:1,16,18 91:10

naturers) 6:1567:22
86:2

near [4] 29:18 52:18,20
52:22

necessarily 2 31:22
49:19

necessary (s 81:13
110:11,23

neck [z 71:14,16

need (7 17:1339:14
40:17 42:10 48:2 67:14
79:25

needsiy 100:7
negativey 3:15
negotiating 1 3:3
new 7z 9:132:933:19
39:559:15 75:24 90:8

Newfoundland 3 2:8
25:1123:6

next (6] 12:20 40:12,20
53:858:3 95:1

night (12 83:24 85:8,10
85:14,23 86:5,10,13,15
86:17 87:4,12

NL [ 123:9

NL OPB [y 76:17

Nobody 11 22:20
nonya 37:16

normiz 80:18 81:2
nor mal (11 120:6
notation [z 47:14 49:25
notationsiy 50:2

noters 43:2063:8
113:17

nothings 65:1168:23
107:24

noticers 14:156:8
58:12

noticed (1 66:16
notification [y 122:1
notified [y 43:5
notwithstandingz
3:292:20

Nova[7 4:1460:13
64:13 85:2 86:8,9 93:20

Nova's[y 86:19

November [ 66:4

Nnow [34] 1:3,213:8,18
6:18 14:1 16:3,15 29:12
31:17 34:13 36:20 39:19
45:4 47:1351:6 52:6
58:16 59:15 62:16 66:24
68:18 72:5 75:9 77:20
80:7 87:15 88:18 90:6
91:15 95:6 97:4 109:5
117:4

NTR 5 65:11,16 66:5
68:17,18

number (17 6:21 10:12
20:2 21:10,12 50:10 59:1
60:14 80:8 82:5,11
104:21

numbered [y 108:23
number sy 60:11

-O-

O’Brienisq 97:10,13
97:14,15 98:4,17 99:2
99:18,24 100:8 101:3,7
101:12,23 102:4,11,18
103:2,25 104:10,14,18
105:8,25 106:20,25
107:13,23 108:3,9,16
109:19 110:7,17 111:13
112:1,25113:23 114:15
115:1,10,20 116:11,16
116:23117:5,18,23 118:8
118:16 119:1,7,11,16,24
120:19 121:4,19,23

obeyed 1 62:21

obligation[1 33:10

obviously [z 4:2579:7

occasion[i 103:19

occupational (251 11:7
11:10 12:4 13:21 15:6
16:12 19:7 20:25 42:3
64:2567:179:18 91:7
91:18,22 94:17 95:5
114:20 115:3,11 116:7
116:14,21,25 117:10

OCCur a1 15:12

occurred(z 32:2435:11

occurrencerz 89:6
120:4

occurrencesyy 33:7
October [2] 65:16,21

off (7 2:2325:857:3
91:14 92:5 93:16 118:12

offer (31 50:1591:20
116:19

offshore[z3 8:14 10:1
10:6,8,25 25:1 39:15
44:958:17 60:18 67:2
81:17 110:19 111:3,9,16
111:25 115:15,24 116:2
116:3,5,22

oftenqy 97:1

OHS[17 15:14,18 18:13
18:14,17 19:5,10 40:18
60:15 79:9 89:15,23
93:1994:10 117:15,16
120:5

old 2 59:1360:1
onces) 3:2182:2103:20

ones9 4:116:116:13
17:2 20:14 21:21 22:5
22:24 28:3,5 30:8,13,20
30:20 38:10 39:20 41:1
42:4 47:2 51:4,19 57:16
50:4,6,7 64:4 69:2 72:11
72:15 73:19 74:9,23 75:4
77:2578:16 81:9,11
83:2584:17,23 85:1,4,7
86:15,16 90:20 94:18
97:1,18,22 98:6 99:25
113:18 117:4 118:10,12
121:12,13.24

ongoingiz 88:389:5

onshore[g 10:6,7 44:11
58:19 63:8 69:2 111:9
111:10,15

onwardsyy 32:24
open [3 42:14,2558:25
opened 7] 43:22,24
opensiy 42:20
operate[y 68:12
operating4 80:2 115:4
115:22 116:1
operation i 111:10

operationsig 37:13
67:2 80:25 81:2 84:12
89:17 109:4 111:9

operator [3 79:10,16
120:15

operator’s[i 99:19

operatorsyiz] 12:22
15:10 37:12 39:14 64:12
66:22 91:17 98:20 100:1
100:16 103:6 104:22

opportunity 1 8:4
opposed 1 72:11
opposite 3:16
orallyy 16:3
order [ 29:8

organization 2] 120:22
121:10

Discoveries Unlimited Inc., Ph: (709)437-5028

Index Page 6




January 21, 2010

Multi-Page™

organizational - react

Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry

organizational [1] 6:6
organizationsii 94:16
oriented [z 36:16 47:16
original 1 59:1
ought 1 1.5
OUTAGE 1 1225
outbound [z 13:4,8
outstanding i 47:2
overall (3 21:14 85:22
121:9

overnight ;2 63:15
98:13

oversight (s 106:23
107:2,4

OwWnN[4 105:22 115:3,13
116:21

-P-

packagey 78:11
pagefio 12:7,20 14:21
40:12 43:16 60:11,12

65:10 108:21,23

paged 1 122:3

panel [5] 9:535:984:8
97:1598:18

panelsii 86:24

parallel (1 64:24

parcel 7 103:16,21

Pardonis 7:98:2027:1
29:593:3

part iz 28:337:6,11
38:4 39:10 57:22 70:25
89:25 100:18 103:16,20
109:24 117:6 118:3 120:6
120:7,12

participationy 95:13
particular g 12:11
45:9104:20

particularly 7 3:13
4:2417:21 32:4 36:17
73:6 88:17

partiesii 63:23

parts[y 90:6

passengersis 13:4,8
82:16

passesiy 83:14

past[3 5:16:5,9

pathi4 28:2338:7,9
47:10

payingii 96:1

Peet (1 123:5

peoplerss 4:16 7:17,19
8:129:21 10:7,25 15:10
15:11 16:10,13 17:22
20:221:2,1528:14,24
29:16 30:16 31:7,24,25
34:15 35:8 36:3,16 37:19
38:6 39:15 46:13 48:22
48:2451:21,2557:8
59:11 60:25 63:20 68:3
68:5 69:1 70:6 71:20,23
71:2573:1374:1,13
75:23,25 76:16 79:21
81:8,9,22 82:3,5,8 84:21

85:5 90:16 93:5,8 94:23
96:10 111:10 115:21
120:6,16

per (4 5:1112:2 82:22
86:16

perceived (1 45:14

percent 12 4:16 9:6
10:1,4,12,21 34:14 36:20
37:16 56:25 57:3,7

per centagery 74:3

per ception (4 46:1
51:11,16 52:13

performiz 68:570:14

performance(z 23:5
785

performed 1 44:18

perhapsis) 24:2328:19
69:8 112:14 114:4

periodi4 7:16 13:5
15:25 20:17 26:14,17
34:13 38:24 49:15 81:21
82:6,15 91:8,23

persistent [z 22:7,9

person 21 5:3,56:16
8:10,10,11 16:14 30:18
39:21,23,25 40:3,8 42:20
42:21 45:17 46:24 47:18
51:19 72:8 75:4

personal (4 102:14
104:3 106:9,16

personnel (7 13:3,7,8
32:18 44:958:17 67:14

personsiz) 42:15 80:19

per spectiverio 17:7
46:17 50:20 80:2 86:4
86:19 99:19 103:22
105:20 114:1

Petro-Canadajs 64:2
64:13 108:20

Petro-Canada’siu
48:3
phasez 49:1552:5
phraseology 1 17:1
physical (11 67:15
picked 2] 30:12 76:24
picturers 3:10,11 69:23
piece[z] 99:25 120:25
pieces|z 99:4 104:21
pilot (2 85:16 107:24
pilotsz4) 97:998:22
100:2 101:2,16 102:1,15
102:21 103:13,15,19
104:5,8 108:5,14 109:15

110:11 111:22 112:8,16
112:17 113:14,21 115:23

pitch 2 86:1497:1
placers 13:152:7 75:9
1235

placed 3 9:1130:10
118:2

plans(iy 89:4
plasticy 72:10
platey 97:1
Platformz 64:15

115:25

play i 20:11

pleased 1 3:6

plusii 82:3

POB [11 80:23

point (28] 7:2218:1,4
20:16 22:11 26:16 27:8
27:1928:237:245:14
46:7 47:17 48:5,16,21
48:24 49:14 57:19 62:6
64:369:7,2191:2 92:11
97:18 103:11,21

points[1 113:19

policies[1 105:6

pool (1 73:18

poor [2 57:24 59:17

posed 1 85:18

posesiy 85:17

position [13 20:24,25
45:1 48:21 49:20 64:1
71:6,15,16 73:20 95:20
102:23107:17

possible(s) 7:429:15
30:13,20,25 31:18 35:15
59:12

post [z 21:6 89:12

post-Marchiz 7:1,19

potential (¢] 23:17 25:2
25:17 49:18 84:9 92:8

potentially [z 24:7
87:25

POWER [y 122:5

Power Point [3 87:17
87:19121:6

practicer 35:2451:7
52:6 75:10,12 77:13
1115

practicesy 105:7

prefer (2 63:973:24

premisesyy 118:12

prepared (s 29:148:20
48:2363:10 71:1,25 73:7
78:8

present 4 2:533:23
59:17 78:4

presentation 24 11:8
12:10,13 38:9 60:8 63:13
63:16 64:22 66:10,12,13
66:15,16 67:25 70:13
77:2478:11 87:17,19
88:20 97:18 98:18 121:7
121:9

presentationsi 22:15

presented (g 10:1317:9
535

pretty (3 56:1369:7
717

previousis 49:20 59:23
86:24

previously 4 4:13
35:23 50:23 85:25

primaryy 57:12

principlee] 72:6,13,24
72:2573:374:8

principlesiy 6:17

Pritchardy 84:7

ProAct 19 41:14,16,19
42:5,7,14,23,25 43:4,6,7
43:24 45:9,10 60:14
89:14,18,22 90:20

ProActs(y 41:21

problemi2 16:25 18:8
22:2323:130:8,21,25
32:8 37:8,16 59:21 74:24

problemsis 48:2559:8
59:17 85:17

proceduresii 105:6

proceedingy 47:9

processiiz 8:24 17:3
37:20 42:12 44:2351:6
52:17 63:20 75:15 91:19
92:14122:1

productsp 13:11
profession i 4:17
professional (1] 5:16
professionalsiy 5:16
6:9

program s 29:22 95:14
119:4

programsiz 114:9
118:24

projectiy 84
proper [s] 30:17,20
32:1933:235:16
properly(s 13:928:6
47:19

protection [z 23:13
106:17

protectiverz 106:10,16
protocol [3 121:15,18
121:22

protocolsiiy 121:12
providers 30:15,17
38:4 89:18 109:13
provided 7 59:4,5,6
85:24 109:12 110:3,4
providing(z 89:3,5
pull{z 57:5117:4
purpose[y 91:13
purposes(s) 44:22 85:15
87:4
pursuery 102:25
pushii 95:4
put (13 17:25 18:3 30:12
35:14 37:19 39:18 72:6

75:2 89:22 91:4,12 93:15
114:9

putting[y 77:11

_Q_
Q.Cr207m 1:232:2,15,16
2:22 4:206:14 7:8,12 8:1
8:19,25 9:8,13,24 10:9
10:14,19 11:5,20,25
13:25 14:9,19 15:1,16
15:21 16:7,19 17:15,24
18:19,23 19:2,6,12,17
19:23 20:9,15,22 21:20

22:4,19 23:7,11,20,25
24:4,8,14,20,24 25:7,21
26:8,15,25 27:6,16 28:1
28:11 29:2,6,11 30:6,24
31:3,932:7,13 33:12,16
33:20,24 34:3,7,19 35:3
35:13 36:2,8,25 37:14
37:24 38:14 39:6,11,17
40:2,7,11,22 41:2,12,17
41:22 42:1,9,18 43:8,14
44:6 45:12,21 46:2,6,22
47:12 48:19 49:6,23
50:11,16 51:17 52:14
53:13,18,20 54:3,24 55:1
55:13,20 56:6,11,17,23
57:20 58:4,10 60:5 61:1
61:10,16,21 62:4,11,15
62:19 63:3 64:8,21 65:8
65:15,20 66:3,8,19 67:9
67:13,20 68:13,24 70:8
70:15,20 71:3,19 72:4
72:19,23 73:8 74:7,19
75:18 76:15,23 77:19
78:2179:1,14 80:6,16
80:22 81:1,6,19,25 82:13
82:19,25 83:7,12,18 84:3
85:12 86:3,18 87:2,8,14
87:18,22 88:16,25 90:2
90:12,22 92:12 93:2 94:2
94:13,25 95:17 96:14,25
qualification (4 109:14
110:23 111:5113:10
qualification/experience
[1] 109:1
qualificationsg 109:3
109:10110:1,12 111:8
112:6,11 113:4 114:5

qualified 1 113:22
qualifies[y 29:18
quarter [y 78:6
quarterly(z 77:378:3
questionings 1:4
97:21 120:21
questionsyig 1:7,14,22
1:242:3,7,10 4:22 6:11
6:17 29:8 31:12 55:16

74:24 75:2 96:15 97:6,8
103:4

quickly 1 90:19
quites] 5:2519:338:24
85:7 93:8

quoters 11:812:8,12
70:12

-R-
railsiy 92:5
raise[z 114:13120:8

raised g 12:14 14:14
22:159:20 60:15 63:18
63:19 90:20 120:18

raises[y 120:11
raisingpy 79:22
RANDELL [y 2:15
rangeis 6:39:2582:7
re-ask (y 112:3
reached [y 62:21
react 7 73:12,14

Discoveries Unlimited Inc., Ph: (709)437-5028

Index Page 7




January 21, 2010

Multi-Page™

read - size

Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry

read i 108:22

reading2 19:2545:13

realisticiy 76:13

realize[y 61:11

reallyi4 28:347:16
54:18 74:4 79:25 97:21
98:21 99:25 103:5 107:16
109:8 115:23 116:9
120:21

reason (¢ 8:521:18,21
24:9,15 47:11
reasons[y 93:13
rebreather (11 92:15
received (3 5:12 55:21
63:14
recent [y 61:6
recognizez 50:9 88:14
recognized (4 35:25
52:7 75:10 77:8

record4 1:53:722:22
109:23

RECORDING 3
122:5

recordsyy 91:10
recovery i 86:24
recurrent s 32:3,9
735

redacted [ 12:1
reduced 2 23:14 96:8
refer (2 12:6 91:3

referenceq4 55:24
65:24 85:16 92:3

referenced [y 18:12
r eferencesy 60:13
referencingy 108:8

referredz 63:13
109:25

referringpy 11:15
referspy 14:14
reflect (2 69:8 70:16
reflectedy 77:15
reflectiony 64:23
refuellingy 103:17
regardpyg 113:2
regardingi 43:24
regimeri 90:8
REGISTRAR [5 53:16
54:5,11 87:16,20
regular e 15:9,12 35:11
81:7 82:2117:14
regularlyz 77:280:10
regulated [z 97:24,25
regulation 4 101:24
102:6,8 111:19
regulationsy 102:13
regulator [z 80:2111:6

regulatory 7z 89:3
100:17,18 101:21 102:10
103:24 105:20

related 4 15:367:17
88:6 119:20

relates[z 89:9113:14

relatingpy 12:24
relation (3 50:3,4 89:20
relationsyy 71:5
relaxiz 13:1457:19
relyzy 32:833:5
relyingy 32:11
remainiy 58:25
remember [y 16:3
remindy 84
reopeniz 437,10
reopened (1] 40:21
repy 92:3
rephrasen 24:23
replaced [ 109:2
reporte 6:713:15
65:12 88:4 96:11 113:20
reportediz 88:3,13
reportings 96:9
117:25119:19
reportsiy 89:6
representativery 48:4
91:5
representativesis
12:23 81:10 115:12,17
representing(i 97:16
reps[z 79:894:11
request s 20:16 21:1
50:25 78:1,2
requested(s) 18:14 19:5
19:7,10 62:14
requestings 20:859:7
69:15

requestsiy 45:2
requirery 43:25
requirediiz 12:19
13:19 36:10 44:10,11,21
46:13 58:18,20 63:25
85:10 100:22 108:4

109:11 111:24 112:14
113:9

requirement (4 46:20
99:4 100:19 101:21

requirementsii 25:18
44:16 45:1 99:20 100:17
104:25 107:16,25 112:20
113:16 114:14

requiresii 95:25
requiringy 112:21
rescuez 85:15,18
reservations[y 3:9
resourcesiy 71.5

respect [g) 60:21,22 73:3
80:8 89:17 99:20 100:2
111:8

respirator (1 47:24

respond (s 42:1571:20
78:17 102:24 120:17

respondsiz 42:2143:3

responseizs 12:20
14:13,21 19:13,15 20:12
21:4,531:2 40:15 43:1,3
435 44:1358:21 63:8
64:16 75:25 78:1 120:13

120:14,22 121:10
responsibility (n 4:12
32:16,18 103:7 105:11

106:15,24

responsivei 107:1
resty 4:11
resultz 25:355:22

resultsi4 14:856:2,4
96:12

resumesiz 3:20 112:19

returniiz 8:17,22 17:18
17:20 35:22 36:13 37:6
37:12 38:12 89:13 90:15
121:13

returningry 7:16
revertiy 59:12

review (s 12:17 113:17
113:18

reviewed (5] 63:16,17
63:17 66:10 88:5

revisediy 109:2

rig4 105:17 106:6,8,12

right 2s) 2:1211:9 14:13
16:2 20:23 22:25 23:14
24:128:8 31:6 55:12
83:11 87:23,24 89:8 92:5
97:1102:12 103:10
107:14 108:6 115:21
117:24 119:17 120:20

rigorousyz 10:23
112:16

rigour [1 46:19
risk [s 40:889:392:8
riskspy 88:2
Robert [y 16:22
robust 7 48:1494:18

Roil 7 1:411:17 29:3,7
53:18 54:24 98:5

rolerz 6:492:13

roll [y 86:14

rolled 4 33:15,17 38:11
41:1

Rose[7 64:1385:4
rotate[z 53:2254:19
rotatesiy 54:8
rotatingi 54:25
rotation (s 65:1,6 82:3
Rumboldt [y 62:20
runningpiy 106:12
Rutherfordy 2:8

-S

S92 89:21

Sacutafz 98:2099:3

Sacuta’ sy 100:15

safely 1 39:16

safety [sg 3:7,10,15,23
3:24'4:9,9,10,11,13,17
4:18,225:3)5,6,11,12,15
5:17,18,25 6:6,7,8,17
11:7,10 12:4 13:21 15:6
16:11,12 19:8 21:1 26:22
27:342:4,14 48:151:8

59:16 64:25 67:1 71:8
71:10,11,17,21 72:6,13
74:9,10 75:11 78:5 79:18
89:16,24 91:7,19,23
94:18 95:5,14,24 98:21
100:1 104:21 105:1,11
113:17 114:21 115:3,11
116:7,15,21,25 117:10
117:13

samplepy 10:3

SAR [ 86:1

satisfied (4 44:24 77:10
95:18 100:12

SaW [7] 21:17 45:18 56:2
74:5 79:11 118:11 120:5

says[io 12:21 14:1,22
52:20 60:12,15 66:20
108:24 109:9,11

scenario[s 30:2031:13
35:15

scenariosyy 30:13

scheduley 65:7

scheduled [y 80:10

SCHULTZ [y 1:18

Sciences[y 2:7

SCOoopPS|1 87:1

scope(s 106:11 108:25
117:17

screeniy 121:24

Sseqy 5:11

Sea[4] 64:1385:386:19
87:3

seal (29 9:12 12:16 13:5
20:321:3,12 22:25 29:17
32:6 36:21 39:21,25 40:1
40:4 47:1,6,14 48:9,9
49:10,12,16,19 50:5,8
57:2,15,24

sealed [y 47:19

sealsig 11:11,12 12:15
12:2513:1515:321:14
26:1,2 30:4 38:25 39:2
39:24 46:8 60:22 68:6
69:20,22 70:16

Sean [y 91:12

seats[3 82:21 83:23,25

second [g 12:7 14:21
30:10 50:4 86:17 88:21

secondly 1 32:17

Secretary [y 68:15

section [y 109:25

see[34 6:2112:7,20
14:20 18:3 22:14 30:7
30:11,16 32:16,19 357
37:16 40:12,20 43:12
44:7 467,25 52:17 637
64:10 65:3,10 66:9 88:20
92:13,23 94:5 95:8
104:23 105:13,14 120:8

seeingz 8:10110:8

seek [ 95:16

seemiy 28:4

seemingly (1 78:16

sees[z] 52:18 103:6

salfy 519

self-check [ 31:17
self-selectingy 11:2
semanticqy 91:1
senior [ 46:24

senses 6:2318:7 19:25
28:21 45:15

sensitivity (2 38:22
120:2

sent (2] 69:14 70:6

separate(z 28:1266:15

September (3 65:9,10
83:20

Series(s 17:922:2 47:7
75:1111:19

servicelwy 7:17 8:17,22
17:18,20 35:22 38:12
89:1,13 90:15 107:9

Services[y 108:25
Session [y 66:21
Set [7] 65:22 78:14 89:14
106:15 111:11 114:5,14
sets[z 77:25111:19
setting(y 3:5
seveni[i 92:25
several (7 12:25 40:25
share(z 52:12 73:16
shared [y 9:17
sharing[y 52:8
shift[y 88:5

shop (1] 46:15
short[y 81:1282:4
shrinkingy 94:19
shutting[1 103:17
sideqy 108:24
signqy 51:13
significant (7 27:13
30:3,537:11,23 79:12
92:24

Sikorskyy 89:21

similar (3 118:24 119:8
119:10

Similarlyz 104:11
107:14

simple[z 37:1572:7

simply g 15:14 37:6,10
39:1841:1343:7 72:2
78:7

simultaneously |2
48:1050:5

singlerz 62:1089:14

siter4 105:22 118:2,12
118:20

Sits[2 68:15 114:23

sitting[4) 3:17 8:6 73:17
93:14

situation [7] 28:14 46:25
73:14 85:18 87:25 88:12
107:3

SiIX[9 13:415:2531:8
35:2,4,20 65:4 87:11,12

six-week 1 65:1

Size4 10:2 43:2559:2

Discoveries Unlimited Inc., Ph: (709)437-5028

Index Page 8




January 21, 2010

Multi-Page™

sized - trying

Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry

Discoveries Unlimited Inc., Ph: (709)437-5028

69:11 61:20,23,25 62:10,14 27:5,9 28:6,6,8 29:23 tailor (1 46:15 times[7 13:16 23:16,21
sized (7 27:534:16 78:14111:5112:20 30:132:69,2033:1517  |takes[y 25:23 36:3 82:22 83:11,13 84:20
Sizes[z) 44:958:18 113:13 1930 2r20392) |takingra 632011210 |TLM [ 88:4
Sizings 43:17,104411 |Standardsis 44:19 14121001 41 19 [tank @ 80:17 today (6 81:16 92:24

gls 4317, . 48:14,15 60:17 107:15 46:14,14,16,21 47:1,19 [1] ol 93:6.8 109:8 110:10

5'8:19 69:16 111:12 112:16 113:10 47:22 48:11,12 49:5 TapRoot [1] 36:4 Y : )
slide(s 53:487:1588:19 _ 50:20,2351:2,21,2457:5 |Taray 1235 together (4 50:3 65:34

120:22121:7,8 standby 1y 87:1 58116592389,1116 | ;o : 4] A
slides(y 121:11 star t([;lj 2:234:76:20 59:2260:1,21223 612 | Gonn o0 o |tolerancery 87:9

_ started s 35:2237:19 | 61:5,7,7,12,19,22,23 < toleratern 48:24

slower [ 78:17 38:5,10,11 62:6,8 63:10,17,18 64:3 teChnlca.l [2] 92:18 108:8 tone 6[9?8
small (y 21:10 startingry 39:20103:18 | 64:111765:2568512  |techniquesiy 33:3 (1 ©9:
smaller 1 69:11 sate 1o a0 ara | 69:1,12,13,1670:14 technoloav 21 55:2 0014 27:1551:20 63:20

. (3 51:1286:19 87:3 ; , gy [2] 55! 68:6
snitchy 9519 Statement s 515178 | 7304743 roa oaon0 |, 002 took (4 22:2 357 47:7
solely (71 32:1173:11 69:9 8120 91:16 suitew 135 ttil(! é ngg [3] 11:18 587 ey S
:: Iuctlitc?r(lj [21] 321-:11811 stay [y 44:2 uitsiey 6:1911:112:19 | emp eratureqy 1623 |tOP[@ 57:690:18

| (4 925 stepry 58:3 13:9,13,16 20:8 21:19 26:19 topiciy 78:2
solvery 30:9 Stepsi(3) 22:247:753:8 22:2525:11 26:2,5,12 templatey 72:2 topicsiz 78:6,9
someoners 42355  |gtewardshipig 9525 | 27:2128:1529:17 31:16 ; _

> 9994 5718 34 Py 95: 1753233416350 |ten(a 36:2037:1684:24 |total [y 82:4

18:222:2427:18 3422 | itf 10 £7-14 69:20.21 32:17 33:2,334:16 35:9 [4] 36:20 37:16 84:

47:20 97:2 111:14 SRS 35:20 36:15,17 39:5 90:7 totally y 108:12
sometimery 67:6 e 44:13,25 45:15 46:11 termsiie 3:1560:23 towardsi 59:2
ometimesiy 3.3 stiffnessiy 39:4 47:1148:22,25 50:24 70:6 75:22 90:1,18 town (1 16:20

[ = still (127 44:1846:747:2 | 52:659:13 60:16 63:18 100:25110:1212 1126 | ol > asag
somewhat 2 97:19 51:557:15 61:22 66:10 63:21,24 66:20,22 67:15 | 112:20115:2,21 116:2 2 4o:4,

10711 67:2177:18 85:8,10 67:22 68:9 69:13 73:21 119:17 120:12 trackedy 58:25
somewherefs) 9:25 112:2 74:4,14,1575:24 77:6 Terraqg 4:1460:13 Trackingqy 89:1

10:4 56:7 81:21 82:7 STOPPED 1] 122:5 77:17,182298:2399:12 | 64:13 85:2 86:8,8,19 trainpy 32:18
Sooley 1 123:11 straightforward y o 005192510113 | 6320 trained 3 5:1430:16
SOrry iy 11:2118:22 37:15 e od . testified [y 35:10 113:21

24:1341:16 54:1550:5 | Street [1] 123:5 Sy ar1zedial 884 \testimony (7 3222 |trainingps 3:23,255:6

66115 60:17 8319 10822 | g1 ingent 11y 86:10 - 59:23 92:2,599:9,17 5:11 31:25 32:3 60:19

118:17 Srona e 37 11319 summer [z 83:13,14 100:15 76:9 107:15,25 108:5
Sort (4 48:272:12 116:5 gl2 3:7113 Suncor 14 3815812  |testing(1y 10:7 32:23 109:10 110:22 111:4,8

119:18 strongly 2 56:2557:4 | 9:152110:318:220:24 | 33113521 36:10 37.00 | 113:10114:911
sorted 1y 49:1 structurery 91:23 28.2338:51064:289:13 | 381,17 46:20 48:14 trainingspy 113:4
sound [y 1237 subcontractor 4 St03'6 , | 59249489 transcribed 1 123:6
soundsiy 69:6 1%5'10 %10';4 1358 | SONCONS(a 122177 thank ng 1110121619 | transcript 2 16:4 123:3
speak 7 5221417 | SUpCONtractor siy ervised 1l 6 25128227:162:1220 | T angOcean y 106:11

113 2316 40:17 487 118:20 supervised 1 6:8 63:15 96:18,20,22,24 TransOcean’

sag T lsubcontractorspy  |supervisor [z 18:10 97:15 120:20 121:7 Lanscean s
specialistsiy 85:21 104:24110:21 113:2,3 21:2 that’ll (11 60:10 transport .

ity 61 1131111418 11514 |qupplied (g 11:14 109:8 |theme(y 106:5 ransport i1 1.16
speciality [ 6:1 117:7 118:3,13,23 ; i 44:15,20 48:13 52:7
ecialty (11 107:9 109:9 themselves(y 100:19 65:21,24 78:15 84:21
Specialty [y 107: submerged 3 26:1012 |suppliesiy 105:17 ther ef . ) . ;
f PEe _ ereforeqy 60:19 97:2599:5,11 100:13
specificig 5:106:11 27:19 | , S ) : )

758 5025 78.1.1 90.3 b . . supply (g 15:10,11 thermal (27 23:1325:17 | 103:23107:10113:15

10616 10716 108:14 | ooV SION 4 27:22 1 105:5109:22 116:20 thinkingy 88:17 transportation po

109:3121:12.14 subsequent [y 99:14 urr thouaht 1ol 11-21 18:2p | 6:19 25:13 26:22 27:3
specifically g 9:21 substanceqy 109:9 support [z 88:18,21 39_2%7_1[7 leao1601 | 51:1561:23627 75:11

97:23106:7 119:20 121:5 | Substantially(y 25:24 |suppose(y 4:21 57:860:10 11810 89:10106:8
spend 1y 987 such s 9:1569:2076:8  |[surely 1 83:20 threaten 1y 23:8 transported y 105:3
spokery 1097 84:20 114:18 surfacez 27:12,13 threateningy 23:1 travel (3 8:149:1810:8
St[z 12359 suffer [z 737 surveynn 1331424  |threeqq 43166412 |U avellersiy 43.18
Stacey 12g 2:14,18 4:2 sufficient 1) 74:12 14:6 15:2453:3,1455:16 | g5:2 83:8 84:11,14,15 travellingy 39:15

5:920'3750:1418 suggest (4 6:1129:12 55:21 56:1 60:22 85:8 86:13 treated (1 98:15

51:2355:574:5,21 80:14 | 29:1472:1 survival 7 23:14,1621 |through 27 1:63:20  |tried [y 29:21

88:10 95:12,22 96:19 suggested [z 16:2198:6 | 31:2532:343:1776:8 8:10 12:5 22:14,14,21 trigger (2 57:8,22

97:12106:322 116:18 | suggesting(y 12:10 suspect (21 8:569:7 28192921303831 |4jooered 1) 16:23

117:1118:14,17,22 119:3 ot ) system(z 94:18117:14 | 37:1939:1941:7515 : :

119914 Suggestion y 64:16 Semiciy 1719911 | 5695822235021 [tripsy 824
staff 1 70:1 suggestsiy 79:11 533(6_1 ) 2'4 doa 75:14,15 89:18 90:20 troubleqy 69:15
stager 71:24 73:25 Suit 119 7:2,3,21 8:11 PHHER A 91:18 94:16 114:13 truery 3:16123:3

Sl 8:15,18,23 9:1,310:15 119:15 Ve 17-1122-2 478
stagesiy 94:6 18:920:3 21:2,15,22,25 -T- throuahout 4l 5: yle 1711222 47
rougnout4 513,18 | 52:1157:18 95:15
standard 2z 25:1523 | 2272356,17,22249 |7 op 1 8819 21:953:10 : ' )

25:2427:22,2529:18,24 | 24:11,15,17 25:1,9,13 [ so: tight 141 11:11 1215 tryingse 18:1,2 20:23

30:1 46:12,19 61:6,9,12 25:15,20,22,23 26:23 table[s] 3:314:11,12 g i (4 - - 22:948:8,1050:12 52:15

15:4 67:21 38:2568:6 52:22 58:2 68:2 74:17
Index Page 9




January 21, 2010

Multi-Page™

turn - zippers

Offshore Helicopter Safety Inquiry

78:14 101:8 103:10 107:6

turnis4 60:12 63:480:7
90:23

turned 1 60:1

TV iy 3:13

twice[y 65:7

two[26 17:2328:5,12
30:7 31:18 34:22 36:18
43:1950:2 56:19 64:24
65:10 81:9 83:25 84:11
84:14,15,18 85:7 88:21
94:8 98:21 99:1,4 115:5
121:11

two-threeqy 81:12

typers 32:2384:22
92:16 107:9

typesiy 68:7
typical (3 81:18,2082:1
typically 2 90:1992:8

-U-

Uh-hmg 9:9

ultimately 7 4:14
28:23 36:19 37:22 38:12
53:970:24

Um-hmiz 67:19 72:20
unacceptable(y 59:12

uncomfortabley
71:14

uncovered [y 37:7

under [g] 4:18 26:18
27:12 45:10 58:25 88:20
90:8 107:10

underlined [y 12:8
underminesy 71:11
undersigned 1 123:2
under stand [29] 20:20
22:10 24:19 25:20 29:22
29:25 34:20 41:16,18
42:11,11 46:11 47:8
48:10 49:10 67:4 69:5
70:9 72:13 75:8 80:9
103:3109:12 110:9 112:7
118:3,21 119:4 120:24

understood 9 11:21
18:16 28:22 47:4 78:13
78:18 100:10 107:2 121:8

undertakingpy 109:21
unfamiliar [y 6:10
unfortunatery 20:5

Unfortunately [y
60:11

union [z 3:491:11

uniqueis) 44:1058:19
111:1 11311 114:17

unit [y 92:16

unitsy 92:18
University (1 2:6
unlessiz 66:12 117:2
unlikeqy 48:21
Unlimited [z 123:12,14
unusual (17 83:9

up 41 3:5,18,20 15:5,20

15:2516:1 17:530:12
35:6 36:20 41:1 44:11
52:23 54:4 58:19 59:9
59:23 63:25 70:25 76:18
76:2477:7,13 78:20
79:17 89:14 101:14
103:18,21 108:5,18
110:13,23 111:14 113:5
114:19 117:4,15121:6
121:24

updateiz 44:12 55:24
58:20,24 60:25 63:7,12
63:16 64:10 65:11,16
89:19

updatesyy 89:16

upper [1 72:8

upset [y 51:20

used [g] 17:160:17,19
63:19,24 64:11 73:4
106:10

using4 47:24,25 60:2
7121

V-

Vi 2:15
validation 1 96:6
value[z 4:1093:22
varietyy 93:13
various[y 4:17
vast [1 50:25
vendor [ 81:10

vessal (71 84:21 86:11,12
86:20,20,21 105:5

vessals[3 87:1116:20
117:7

vest (4] 26:5 100:10,11
100:18

vestSes 98:23 99:10
100:3,6 102:5,8

view s 18:2 54:4 106:23
107:2,4

viewed [ 107:11

viewingy 3:13

violets(y 94:19

virtuers 9:1265:6
75:13

visit [y 8112

visits[y 98:13

visual [y 85:15

voice[y 116:6

Vokey (o5 2:14 4:6
25:25 26:9,11,16 27:10
27:20 28:2 33:4,14,18
34:4,5,9,10,20,21,24
38:20 39:9 48:17 49:13
49:24 53:22,25 54:20
55:9 62:2,5,16,17 76:1
76:21 77:1,22 80:12,20
80:24 81:3,4,15,23 82:9
82:17,23 83:5,10,15 84:1
84:6 85:19 86:7,22 87:6
87:10 88:8 92:1,17 93:4
94:21 95:10 96:4,21
97:12 98:1,19,25 99:7
99:22 100:4 101:10,18

102:2,16 103:12 104:6
104:12,16 105:2 107:7
107:21 108:7,11 109:16
110:5,15 113:6,25 115:8
115:16 118:5,10 120:9
122:3

Vokey'sp 5:15
voluminousiy 41:6
volunteer [y 91:13

“W-

walit [ 63:10 121:5

waiting(g 59:14 65:21
73:18

walls[y 3:5

water [20] 22:24 23:4,12
23:17 24:10,16,25 25:14
25:16 26:4,5,7,9,18,19
27:12,1473:23 94:8,9

waysiz 52:3 75:17
weaknesses[y 31:18

wear [7] 72:9 99:21 100:7
101:14 102:15 104:3
105:1

wear er sz 31:15,15

wearings 26:2327:4
51:1

weather [4 83:386:1,5
86:11

week [5] 13:4 15:25
81:1382:15 84:8

weeks[7 31:8 34:22
35:2,4,20 65:2,4
WHALEN g 2:2
whatsoever [ 85:23
whole[s 15:23,24 26:16
willing 99:16
wish [y 54:13
wishes[y 12:2
within(4 45:578:14
89:13 105:22

without [3 23:1372:9
73:20

witnesses(3 1:811:22
41:8

wondering4 3:22 63:4
112:4,12

words3 15:4 21:3 40:6

worked (3 63:22 66:11
69:11

worker [5 91:592:3,24
94:6,10

workers(z 87:24
105:21,24 110:20 115:24
116:5118:11

workforcepz 9:710:1
10:7 17:12 22:16,18 51:1
51:8 53:10 70:23 74:3
78:20 79:8 81:7 95:16
95:24 96:2

workplaceis 3:8,16
71:9 73:11 74:9 88:1
96:7 120:7

works[y 121:10

world 3 3:14 65:6 102:3
WOorniz 73:498:22
wor st [2] 83:14,17
worthwhilery 28:19

wrist iz 11:1112:15
13:15 21:14 30:4 38:25
48:9 60:22 68:6 69:20
69:22 70:16

writeqy 70:4
wrongiy 84:5
wrote[y 68:1

-Y-

year [3] 83:11,13,19

yearsii 92:25

yesterday (14 6:237:15
8:7 13:2,2417:9 29:3,7
38:947:7 57:11 58:9
97:18,23

yet [y 109:13

yourself (3 15:2316:8
104:23

Z-

zerofe 95:1,3,14 117:25
118:24 119:19

Zipry 13:9

Zipper (14 13:5,11 47:14
48:949:11,16,17,22 57:5
57:9,11,13,14,16

Zipper sz 12:2513:14
15:321:13 30:4 39:4
47:650:3,7 57:18,23
58:1,2,8 69:20,22 70:17

Discoveries Unlimited Inc., Ph: (709)437-5028

Index Page 10




